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AbouHChampionilechnologyl(stocidcode16092)

Champien Tedinelegy (www.championtechnology.com) is the holding company of a communications software group
of companies, with subsidiaries specializing in wireless technologies formed in 1930s, and software development
established in 1987. Capitalising on its w1reless transmission and information software experience, the Group has
ions tech ologses' comprehenswe ran eofs lutio

successfu!ly mtegrated different com
AR

AR R

Groups‘soluttons include software-ei yirele
Internet access products for consumers, network operators, and commercial, govemment and industrial customers.

In recognition of the potential of the digital economy and digital convergence, the Group has in recent years been focusing
on a number of fundamental Internet solutions, especially in the arena of wireless Internet, covering the aspects of speed,
capacity of access, security and authentication, digital content creation, and e-commerce.The Group's objective is to
build on its global and regional presence to promote its e-services, especially in China.

The Group has a global presence in more than 50 countries through a network of regional offices and distributors, and it
includes 3 Hong Kong listed companies and a former London listed company. Champion Technology Holdings Limited
has a primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its shares are also traded over-the-counter in the
United States by means of American Depositary Receipts.

SRR (HEEE3:0002)

BENH (www.championtechnology.com) 5 —BERHEBLBR AR HBENERBRARNRR-AZEFELRT &
A SSERE S— AR ATMR—ANCER S BARE SR - 2HEB RSB R RINAREERIES:
ROFATTRNBENE BE2ECEKBFERRG-EB RS REERH R ESERA X BRBEERRER
B URPERREBRBENES BEREEHEE BELEN BR BARIERES.

BEREBAERANERENER ERIFRHRRSRATHERBNENERE BESERRRREREHE T
ARERER BEADTEURETRES -SE AERERERY BB 2 2% BB TRE LUPET SR

SEZBREEEHBLTER REATBEZREELTOAR-FHARB LT AR - BEXNEBRERSMERATA
BE— LWt ERGTERBURRES 2 T RETEHRS




24
26
77

Financial Highlights (B3 RER788)

Corporate Information (& #&EER79H)

Chairman’s Statement (X ¥R R80H)

Management Discussion and Analysis (BRETHRITR2E)

Directors and Senior Management Profile (MERBEEEABRSSE)

Notice of Annual General Meeting (R¥FEXFil&R88E)

Directors’ Report (B &)

Auditors’ Report (¥R )

Consolidated Income Statement (& &#R2%K)

Consolidated Balance Sheet (& EZEAER)

Balance Sheet (AE & &K)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(GERFRERHR)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (&R &RBHE)

Notes to the Financial Statements (BB &)

Financial Summary (RIBHE)

Champion Technology’s Global Footprint

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2003



2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

Resulls

(for the year endad 30 June)
- Turnover 1,851,848 1,633,388 1,510,779 1,457,181 1,393,682
- EBITDA 669,887 563,171" 632,993’ 596,344 492,029
- Net profit 191,247 133,040° 249,403' 303,855 185,552
- Dividends 27,604 23,379 16,286 25,389 13,868
Financial Position (25 &t 30 Juns)
- Cash and cash equivalents 489,945 490,374 454,426 541,136 595,395
- Total assets 4,280,035 3,941,869 3,444,962 3,420,308 2,707,071
~ Shareholders’ funds 3,210,764  2,942,064' 2,581,892" 2,340,227 1,999,992
Financlal Retlos (a5 2t 30 Jung)
- Current assets/Current liabilities 2.83 2,152 2.26? 1.30 2.12
- Assets/Shareholders’ funds 1.33 1.34? 1332 1.46 1.35
- Sales/Assets 0.43 0.41 0.44 0.43 0.51
- Gearing ratio 0.17 0.18? 0.17¢ 0.19 0.22
Notes:

1. In current year, with adoption of SSAP 34 in connection with the recognition of costs for
the Group's retirement benefit scheme, a prior period adjustment of HK$65,840,000 and
HK$5,573,000 had been recognised resulting in a corresponding decrease in the Earnings
before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) for the years ended 30
June 2002 and 2001 respectively. Similarly, a prior period adjustment, taking into account
of the effect of minority interests, of HK$37,530,000 and HK$3,176,000 had been
recognised resulting in a decrease in the net profit for the years ended 30 June 2002 and
2001 respectively.

2. These items had been recalculated to take into account of the effect of the restatements
mentioned above.

Eleven Years of Sustained Profitability

(in HK$°000)

669,887
638566 69,077
L :

531001
217,602 5 B
238,150 £ 252,579
: 3 k!
175,003 i ‘ N\ i
=N = i \170.570 ':‘;_"2\247
ff it % Pt
] 185,582 2 N £
I B NS
: H 5 4 133,040 3
i ¥ 5 P el
3 B b
ki i 3 3 g d Before taking into account
L _ ) o2 R _ Ly - ) -’ - Y of the restatement as above:
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2002 2001
HKE'000 HKS000
fiw=" EBITDA EBITDA 629,011 638,566
—=g= Net profit Netprofit 170,570 252,579
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report our eleventh year of profitability since we were listed in 1992.

Fiscal year 2003 was marked by the most unusual combination of events, to say the least. We entered the year with
the Middle East conflict in full swing and the eventual outbreak of war in March. To add salt to the wound, SARS
(Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome) broke out in the beginning of 2003 and ground several Asian economies o a
halt, raising health alarm across the globe. Fortunately it's not all gloom and doom, as the year ended with SARS
coming under control and further brightened up when China and Hong Kong entered into the CEPA (Closer
Economic Partnership Arrangement) which aims at accelerating the development of trade and investment relations

between the two places.

I'm quite upbeat at this point in time delivering this message to our shareholders, a few weeks after further
agreement under CEPA was reached on the liberalization of the telecommunications sector, which allows market
access in five areas of value-added services.

For wireless
opportunities, sky is
the [inmmit

In our 1995 Annual
Report, | talked about
accessing and receiving
Internet data and
information via the
wireless mobile receiver as
part of the evolution of
our enhanced messaging
services alongside the
growth of the Net. In
1999, | highlighted
wireless Internet as the
next big wave. Indeed,
even in 2003, wireless has
only just begun enhancing
and enriching the way we
live, work, and play.

Thanks to the Internet and
the development of IP-
based networks, workers
are now able to access
wirelessly corporate data
in a secure manner via a
number of different
devices, ranging from
pagers, cell phones,
smartphones, PDAs,

mobile PCs, and set-top
boxes. These devices now
rival desktop devices in
computing power and
memory, and have battery
life performance that
permits workers to be
away from the office for
extended periods of time.

Portable device
capabilities, wireless and
mobile networking
speeds, and
communication service
price points are now
reaching a level where
they can be used in the
widespread deployment
of mobile enterprise
applications.

At Champion Techhology,
ur focus on wireless
ommunications salutions

is to enable total mobility,
s well as to re-organise
nd re-engineer processes

1o improve productivity
nd return on investment

sectors including
government, hospitality,
emergency services,
telecommunications,
healthcare, retail, and
chemical plants.

Our results

For fiscal year 2003 we
showed consistent
improvement in our
operational and financial
results. We adjusted to a
tough economic market

and attempted to position

ourselves for where we
want to be in three to five
years. With a focus on
higher profitability and
better return on our
invested capital, we
re-prioritised our
initiatives to reduce the
ongoing level of capital
expenditure and
streamline our cost
structure through
increased use of
outsourcing and third

forour customers, which
cover a wide array |of

party distributors and
licensees to promote our




products and services. Our
financial performance
improved across the
board:

- revenues reached
HK$1,852 million, a
growth of 13 percent
over the previous year.

- EBITDA was HK$670
miilion, 19 percent over
HK$563 million of last
year.*

- Net profit was HK$191
million, 44 percent over
previous year’s figure
of HK$133 million.*

*  Due to adoption of SSAP 34, last year’s
EBITDA and net profit were restated.
Had it not been for the restatement,
EBITDA was HK$629 million, and net
profit was HK$171 million. See
Management Discussion and Analysis
for details.

The Group's continuing
strong financial position,
with cash on hand of
HK$573 million at balance
sheet date, will allow for
further investments,
especially in light of the
bright prospects of the
Mainland’s economy and
the positive effects of
CEPA.

In view of the improved
performance, our directors
have recommended a final
dividend of HK2.6 cents
per share (2002: HK2.5
cents per share). Taking
into account the interim
dividend payment, total

dividend payment for
the year increases 18
percent over last year.

Qutlook

| remain optimistic
about the wireless
market across the
board. In China today,
which is our main
market, only 20% of
the population has
access to wired or
wireless phone lines -
compared with over
90% in Hong Kong, and
70% in America. That
means almost 1 billion
people are waiting for
service, The demand is
so high that China
alone probably
accounts for 50% of
worldwide telecom
growth. By 2005, the
Chinese market will be
double the size of the
US market.

While Champion has
been doing business in
China for over a
decade, the latest
addition of five types of
value-added services
under the liberalization
of the telecoms sector
within the CEPA
framework has further
boosted the
opportunities in mobile
communications and
wireless services. Our
key areas of interest are
content, Internet access,

and call center, where
increased investment is
under review.

We have made and will
continue to consider
making strategic business
investments and alliances
and acquisitions, if
necessary, to gain access
to key technologies that
we believe will augment
our existing technical
capability or enable us to
achieve faster time to
market. We will work
more closely with third
party vendors and
technology partners to
develop more highly
integrated solutions and
building block products
targeted towards
applications in the
wireless market.

In conclusion, { would like
to thank you, my fellow
shareholders and
investors, for the trust and
confidence you have
shown in us throughout
the years. My thanks also
go to the members of the
Board for their continued
guidance and support,
and to the Group’s
management and staff for
their diligence and
dedication.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman
24 October 2003

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2003



Overview

The global economic and investment
climate remained challenging
throughout the period. The
outbreak of war in the Middle East
went almost parallel with the
outbreak of SARS during the second
half of our fiscal year 2003. As a
result, certain business activities
were disrupted and new projects
were pending until overseas travel
resumed. Fortunately, the war was
brief and SARS was under control by
the end of June. By September, we
had basically picked up momentum
again. The signing of CEPA in June
and the subsequent inclusion of the
telecoms sector for liberalization in
market access further boosts overall
investment sentiment and promises
genuine opportunities for the Group
in mobile communications and
wireless services.

Review of Operations

China market remained robust
contributing HK$1,434 million to the
Group's turnover, compared to
HK$1,298 million in the last
corresponding period. The strong
performance of the China market
was mainly attributable to the
overall increase in wireless
infrastructure expenditure in China’s
fast-growing telecoms industry. Had
it not been for SARS which had the
effect of deferring some orders to
post fiscal year, Group performance
would have registered even stronger
growth.

European sales maintained steady
growth with turnover increased by
25 percent to HK$305 million.
Meanwhile, sales to other markets
including the U.S. had also gained
momentum.

The Group’s focus on customized IT
solutions continued, with new
business concentrating on software
enchanced wireless messaging, radio
products and systems, as well as
networking and Internet access
products and solutions for niche
market segments. In terms of
strategic investment, the Group
announced in November 2002 an
investment in 4G1 Inc., which focuses

on the development of next
generation mobile communications
systems. With the additional wireless
dimension, the Group is positioned
to include in its portfolio future-
proof wireless communications
which can meet the dual challenges
of seamless global coverage and
interface with continuously
emerging new standards and
protocols in IP-based networks,
targeted at serving the needs of
fixed line and wireless networks for
data, voice, and video services.

in the areas of Internet and
e-commerce, the Group had
continued to build its customer base
and expand its service offerings. Y28
Innovations, the Group’s flagship
portal and Internet data center, has
added new content channeis
targeted at paid subscribers, and
installed new shopping sites, selling
a broad range of merchandise as
souvenirs, ladies’ cosmetics,
healthcare products, accessories, and
decorative items. Our Internet
directories were also gaining a lot of
traction and bringing in increased
revenue. Meanwhile, Y28 News
Channel became available as a
mobile Internet service on PDAs,
allowing information to be pulled
from the web, and effectively
turning the handheld device or next-
generation phone into a portable
information powerhouse without
wireless connection.

During the year, the Group's
software team continued to engage
in the development of B2B
exchanges for corporate customers.
New focus was on rich media
content such as MMS and SMS for
mobile applications.

Kantone Holdings Limited
(Kantone)

Overall performance of Kantone for
the year under review was
satisfactory. For the year ended 30
June 2003, Kantone recorded a
turnover of HK$815 million, an
increase of 13 percent over last year.
Net profit was HK$110 million,
representing an improvement of 74
percent compared with HK$63.3

million {before prior period
adjustment of HK$65.9 million due
to implementation of SSAP 34) last
year. With the adoption of SSAP 34,
Kantone's result for last year was a
restated net loss of HK$2.6 million.
(For details refer to Financial
Performance below)

Kantone introduced its Access
Integrator Messaging System (AIMS),
which features DECT Messaging,
TCP/IP, and Networking Messaging,
and is also capable of working with
a variety of internal and external
devices. Market response has been
encouraging. Meanwhile, a new
management team has been formed
at Kantone’s European operations,
which implemented cell-based
manufacturing, targeted at
increasing operation efficiency; and
closely aligning production levels to
customer needs, thus giving the
ability to reduce inventory for the
benefit of customers and the Group.

Kantone continued to be the
preferred supplier of mission critical
communications services for the
emergency and rescue service
sectors, accounting for 60 percent of
the UK healthcare market, and 85
percent of UK fire services. The
budgetary constraints for IT
purchases in major institutions and
public sectors actually helped
Kantone's business, as cost-effective
narrowband communications
infrastructure building on existing
communications systems are
preferred, especially in Europe and
America.

During the period under review,
Kantone was awarded a contract to
supply and install comprehensive
narrowband communications
systems for a chain of hospitals in
the US. The status as the approved
provider of onsite communications
systems for the US market has
opened the door to many exciting
opportunities ahead, especially
where many of the radio systems
within the US Federal Government
will soon require upgrading or
replacement.




DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(Digital HK)

Digital HK has adjusted and
repositioned itself to expand its
revenue base. It now operates three
complementary lines of business
covering the provision of Internet
and e-commerce enabling solutions;
provision of IT consulting and
technical services; and strategic
investments in selected technologies
and companies with a view to
providing total solutions.

Given the slow take-off of
e-commerce in Hong Kong against a
very competitive market, Digital HK
has adopted a conservative approach
in rolling out its business objectives.
Extreme diligence was exercised in
managing its resources, resulting in
the postponement or revision of
development plans of some projects.
Nevertheless, it had continued its
efforts in pursuing business in
relation to e-commerce solutions,
and had been contracted to develop
an e-commerce platform for
deployment in the China market.

Its conservative efforts have paid off,
as evidenced by ten consecutive
quarters and two consecutive years
of profit. For the year ended 30 June
2003, Digital HK recorded a net
profit of HK$142,000 with a turnover
of HK$9,642,000.

Financial Performance

During the year, the Group had
continued its prudent investment in
new product development and
technologies to enhance its bundled
offerings and services. Through
better allocation of resources to
existing operations and effective
cost control, the Group was able to
sustain profit growth amidst a
general difficult economic climate
and less than palatable global
environment,

Turnover

The Group recorded an audited
consolidated turnover for the year
ended 30 June 2003 of

HK$1,852 million, a 13 percent
growth compared with HK$1,633
million for the previous year. The
growth in turnover was attributable
to an overall increase in sales, with
China accounting for HK$1,434
million, a 10 percent growth
compared to HK$1,298 million of last
year. SARS had interrupted some of
the business activities, deferred some
shipments, and lengthened the
outstanding period of accounts
receivables. However, the overall
strong demand for
telecommunications equipment and
services still outgrew the sales of last
year.

Turnover from Europe increased 25
percent to reach HK$305 million.
Sales to other markets also improved
25 percent to HK$113 million.

Profitability

Net profit for the year ended 30
June 2003 was HK$191 million, a 12
percent growth compared to HK$171
million (before prior year adjustment
of HK$38 million due to
implementation of SSAP 34), and a
44 percent growth compared with
HK$133 million (restated with the
adoption of SSAP 34) last year.
Earnings per share was HK31.44
cents. Earnings before Interest,
Taxation, Depreciation and
Amortisation (EBITDA) was HK$670
million, up 19% compared with
HK$563 million of last year.

The adoption during the year
under review of certain new and
revised SSAPs (Statements of
Standard Accounting Practices)
issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants has led to a
number of changes in the
Group's accounting policies. In
particular, the adoption of

SSAP 34 by the Group's
subsidiary Kantone Holdings
Limited in connection with the
recognition of costs for the
retirement benefit scheme of the
latter has led to a prior period
adjustment, taking into account

of the effect of minority
interests, of HK$38 million to the
Group's net profit last year,
which was restated to a net
profit of HK$133 million,
compared to HK$171 million
prior to restatement. Similarly,
EBITDA for last year was restated
from HK$629 million to HK$563
million after costs of HK$66
million were fully recognised.
The restatement is purely an
accounting treatment. It is a non-
cash item and has no effect on
the financial health and
performance of the Group.

The improved profitability was a
result of effective cost control,
improvement of gross and operating
margins, as well as improved
performance of European
operations. Depreciation and
amortisation of the Group’s
technology development,
e-commerce and telecom investment
projects remained steady at

HK$402 million, and the impairment
provision in relation to Internet-
related investment and
telecommunications projects were
HK$92 million and HK$35 million
respectively. The impairment charges
were a result of the Group's
re-arrangement of its interest in
e-commerce and
telecommunications projects.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Throughout the year, the Group has
maintained a net cash position. As at
30 June 2003, the Group had HK$573
million made up of deposits, bank
balances, and cash. The gearing ratio
at year-end was 0.17 (2002
(restated): 0.18), which calculation
was based on the Group's total
borrowings of HK$556 million (2002:
HK$527 million) and shareholders’
funds of HK$3,211 million (2002
(restated): HK$2,942 million).

Total borrowings comprise bank
borrowings of HK$490 million (2002:
HK$433 million); other borrowings,
which represent block discounting
loans of HK$22 million (2002: HK$30
million); obligations under finance
leases of HK$1 million (2002: HK$2
million); and convertible bonds of

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2003



HK$43 million (2002: HK$62 million).
The bank borrowings are mainly
used as working capital for the
Group. Finance costs for the year
ended 30 June 2003 amounted to
HK$27 million (20G2: HK$31 mitlion).

As at 30 June 2003, certain land and
buildings of the Group with a net
book value of HK$10 million (2002:
HK$9 million) were pledged to a
bank as security for banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Group does not engage in
interest rate or foreign exchange
speculative activities. To mitigate the
foreign exchange risk of the Group
arising from transactions during the
normal course of business,
management has endeavoured to
match foreign currency income and
expense. Management will continue
to use appropriate hedging
instrument for transactions with
high exchange rate risk.

Post Balance-sheet Date
Development

In September 2003, the Group issued
the Tranche 2 Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of US$8
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$62.4 million) pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement entered
into with Credit Suisse First Boston
(Hong Kong) Limited in May 2002
for the issue of up to US$24 million
1.5 percent unlisted and unsecured
convertible bonds due 2005. The
new money further enhanced the
Group's financial position and raised
its cash position by HK$60.4 million.

Final Dividend and Scrip
Dividend Scheme

Subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting, the ng%% HK;%%

directors proposed a final dividend (restated)

of HK2.6 cents per share for the year

ended 30 June 2003 (2002: HK2.5 EBITDA 669887 563,171
Net profit 191,247 133,040

cents per share) to shareholders
whose names appear on the register

Earnings per share

- basic (in HK cents) 31.44 25.06

The Group’s Restated Results
following the adoption of SSAP34

For the year ended 30 June

2002
HK$'000
{before
restatement)

629,011
170,570

3213

of members of the Company on 26
November 2003. Taking into account
of the interim dividend of HK1.6
cents per share paid on 16 June
2003, total dividends for the year
would amount to HK$27.6 million,
an increase of 18 per cent over
HK$23.4 million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by
allotment of new shares of the
Company, credited as fully paid, by
way of scrip dividend, with an
alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such
allotment (the “scrip dividend
scheme”).

The scrip dividend scheme is subject
to the granting by the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited of a listing of
and permission to deal in the shares
to be issued pursuant thereto. A
circular setting out the details of the
scrip dividend scheme together with
the form of election will be sent to
the shareholders of the Company as
soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for
shares to be issued under the scrip
dividend scheme and dividend
warrants will be despatched to those
entitled thereto on or before 28
January 2004.
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Executive Directors

Paul KAN Man Lok is the founder
and Chairman. He is also the
Chairman of Kantone Holdings
Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board, and the Chairman of
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, which is
listed on the GEM Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and brings over 30 years of
experience in the computing and
telecommunications industries to
bear on fully leveraging the
e-commerce technology that is a key
success factor for business today. As
the author of the books in The Hong
Kong e-Commerce Studies Series
published by Digital HK, he has
forged a strong link between his IT
legacy and the promise of an online-
assisted life. Prior to setting up the
Champion Technology Group in
1987, he was the general manager
of Asiadata Limited, a computing
services subsidiary of Cable &
Wireless PLC.

In civic duties, Mr. Kan has served
twice on the Stock Exchange
Working Group on Corporate
Governance during 1994-1995 and
1999-2000, and was a member of the
Listing Committee of the GEM Board
for the period 1999-2003. He is
currently Chairman for the second
successive term of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry
Council; council committee member
of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries; and member of Hong
Kong Legislative Council Election
Committee for the IT sector. Other
memberships include the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council
Electronics and Electrical Appliances
Advisory Committee; the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Anhui Province in the
PRC; and the Election Committee for
the Hong Kong representatives of
National People’s Congress of China.

Mr. Kan also sits on the board of CLP
Holdings Limited as an independent
non-executive director.

Leo KAN Kin Leung is the Group’s
Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer, as well as a Non-
executive Director of Kantone
Holdings Limited. He is the brother
of Paul Kan. He is responsible for
formulating the Group's overall
policy and development strategy as
well as the Group’s global operations
and management. Prior to joining
the Group in 1988, he held
management positions in several
international companies in Hong
Kong. He holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a
Master’s degree in Economics from
the University of Alberta in Canada.

Mr. Kan is a member of the
Telecommunications Standards
Advisory Committee at the Office of
the Telecommunications Authority.
He serves on a number of sub-
committees of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry
Council of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries, including
International Development and Co-
operation Sub-committee, China
Development and Co-operation Sub-
committee, and Government and
Sub-vented Funding Sub-committee.
He is also a member of the IT
Committee of the Hong Kong IT
Alliance.

LAl Yat Kwong is the Group's
Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer, with responsibility
for its financial and accounting
policy and control. He is also Chief
Executive Officer (Acting) and Chief
Financial Officer of Kantone
Holdings Limited. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and has
over 30 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and company
secretarial matters. He is a fellow
member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, and is also a certified
public accountant.

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha is a
solicitor practising in Hong Kong.
She has been the Group's
Independent Non-executive Director
and Company Secretary since 1992.

Terry John MILLER has been an
Independent Non-executive Director
of Champion since 1992. He is also
the Deputy Chairman and Non-
executive Director of Multitone. He
is the Managing Director of Asia
Pacific Financial Management
Limited. Previously, he held the
position of Deputy Chief Executive at
Hong Kong Telecommunications
Limited, and was the Regional
Director, Asia/Pacific, of Cable &
Wireless PLC. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and is the former
president of the Hong Kong Institute
of the International Association of
Financial Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT has been
an Independent Non-executive
Director since February 2000. Mr.
Knight is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Asian Security
and investigation Services Limited
which is a private company. A fellow
of each of the British Institute of
Directors and the British Institute of
Management, the American Society
for Industrial Security and the
International Association of Police
Chiefs, Mr. Knight has over 20 years’
experience in the field of copyright
protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security
adviser to a number of major
organizations.

Champion Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2003
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Professor LIANG Xiong Jian is an
Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since November
2001. He has over 30 years of
experience in telecommunications in
China. He is presently a Professor of
the Department of Management
Engineering at the Beijing University
of Posts and Telecommunications
(BUPT), a post he has held since
1986, and the Director of the
Institute of Telecommunications
Management of BUPT. From 1986 to
1993, he was the Dean of
Management Engineering
Department of BUPT. His other
positions include Member of
National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC); Representative
of the People’s Congress, Beijing
Municipality; and Director of
Communication Economy &
Management Society, China Institute
of Communications. He is also an
independent director of PRC
company Unicom Guomai
Communications Limited, which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and is a member of China
Unicom Group responsible for data
communications, messaging, and
wireless telecommunications.

Professor Liang is well-known to the
telecom community in Hong Kong,
having been invited on numerous
occasions to chair and lecture at
major wireless and various other
telecom conferences held in Hong
Kong and the Region.

Professor YE Pei Da has been an
Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since November
2001. He is a professor and Honorary
President of Beijing University of
Posts & Telecommunications in China
and a director of Lucent
Technologies Fibre Optic Cable
Company. He is also a senior
Member of the Chinese Academy of
Science.

Frank BLEACKLEY has been an
Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since November
2001. He was formerly the Managing
Director of Chubb China Holdings
Limited of Chubb Security Group, a
manufacturer and distributor of
security and safety products and
systems based in the United
Kingdom. He has close to 30 years of
experience in the management and
business development of joint
venture companies in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Senior Management

Francis KAN is Executive Vice
President, Systems Development,
and has heid positions of
responsibility in Information
Technology, both in Hong Kong and
abroad, for over 20 years. Since
1994, he has been responsible for
the operations and expansion of the
Group's systems, overseeing all
Internet-related activities and
alliances with major partners. Mr.
Kan has a Master's degree from the
University of Alberta.

Shirley HA Suk Ling is Executive
Vice President of Corporate
Development, as well as an Executive
Director of Digital HK. She is
responsible for the Group’s
corporate finance and strategic
development, with a focus on
building strategic partnerships and
alliances for the Group.

Ms Ha joined Champion Technology
in 1992, and oversaw the listing and
corporate development of three
listed companies within the Group.
She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts
from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She is a
member of the Advisory Committee
of the Division of Computer Studies
at the City University of Hong Kong,
and Convenor of IDC (International
Development and Co-operation)
Subcommittee of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry

Council of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries. She has been
appointed by Hong Kong Science
and Technology Parks Corporation as
Mentor to its incubatee under the
Mentorship Programme.

Iris KOO Kin Hing is Senior Vice
President, Finance, overseeing all
financial operations of the Group.
Before joining the Group in 1989,
she worked at an international
accounting firm where she had
gained valuable experience. She
holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FUNG Kin Leung is Senior Vice
President of Microelectronics, as well
as an Executive Director of Kantone
Holdings and a Non-executive
Director of Multitone Electronics PLC
(“Multitone”). He is responsible for
managing the Group's research and
development capacity to facilitate its
global operations.

Mr. Fung has over 20 years’
experience in the field of software
and product development. He joined
the Champion Technology Group in
1987 as Technical Manager. In recent
years, he has been focusing on the
development of information delivery
systems to enhance wireless Internet
applications.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Science and Electronics from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master's degree in Electronics
Engineering from the University of
Hong Kong. He is a Chartered
Engineer and a member of the
Institution of Electrical Engineers as
well as the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers.




Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS is
Managing Director of Multitone
Eletronica Ltda, with responsibility
for running the Brazilian subsidiary
of Multitone. He is also the Group's
Vice President of Interactive
Knowledge Delivery, overseeing
clients’ requirements for enterprise
solutions. He joined the Group in
1997 and set up from its inception
the business in Brazil. He holds a
Master’s degree in Aerospace
Engineering from Sup’Aero in France
and an MBA from the London
Business School.

Roy GOSS, based in Macau, is
Director of international Business.
He is a seasoned expert in finance
and telecommunications, having
served in the Middle East and Macau
with Cable and Wireless companies
for almost 20 years. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Prior to joining the
Champion Technology Group, he was
the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a
subsidiary of Cable and Wireless PLC,
where he worked for more than 17
years.

Gary CHOY Kin Chung is Vice
President, Greater China Business. He
oversees all business projects in the
Greater China region and plays a
pivotal role in the execution of the
Group's growth strategy in China. He
is also a member of the Group's
Investment Committee. Mr. Choy
holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from Georgia
Institute of Technology, Atlanta,
Georgia, USA and joined the
Champion Technology Group in
1992.

Cindy MAK Man Yee is Vice
President, Administration and
Logistics. She is the Group's primary
liaison point with external
organizations and coordinates a
wide range of the Group's
operations in logistics, corporate
resource development and
purchasing. Ms. Mak holds a
Bachelor's degree in Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong.
She joined the Champion Technology
Group in 1990.

Joanne CHIU Yim Fan is Vice
President, Human Resources and
Corporate Communications. She is
responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s human
resources policies, and also has
responsibility for the Group’s
corporate communications. Ms Chiu
graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree
in Arts. She also holds a Post-
Graduate Certificate in Business
Administration and is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management. She joined
the Champion Technology Group in
1994,

Michelle CHEUNG Kei Yim is Vice
President of Compliance. She is
responsible to oversee the
compliance of the Group’s and its
Directors’ continuing obligations set
out in the Listing Agreement as well
as the compliance of other statutory
requirements. She is also the
Company Secretary of Kantone
Holdings Limited. She holds a
Bachelor’s degree of Business
Administration in Accounting. She is
a member of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants and the Association
of International Accountants, and is
also a certified public accountant.
Ms. Cheung has broad Assurance
and Advisory services experience.
Prior to joining the Champion
Technology Group in 2001, she
worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.

Teresa TONG Seek Fan is Vice
President, Operations. She runs the
Group's call centre and is also
responsible for customer care,
product design and the retaif aspects
of the Group’s business. Ms Tong
holds a diploma in supervisory
management and has been a
member of the Institute of
Supervisory Management since 1992.
She joined the Champion Technology
Group in 1990.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin is Vice
President, Business Development,
with responsibility for the sales and
marketing aspects of the Group's
products and services. Ms Leung has
served the Champion Technology
Group in a number of key areas since
the start of operations in the 1980,
having previously worked with Cable
and Wireless in Hong Kong.

Robert SIA Chun Chung is Vice
President of e-Commerce Operations
at Digital HK, with responsibility for
technical management and systems
support. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong and a
Master’s degree in Electronics
Engineering from the Polytechnic
University of Hong Kong. He has
been with the Champion Technology
Group since 1995,
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
annual general meeting of
Champion Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at 3rd Floor, Kantone Centre, 1
Ning Foo Street, Chaiwan, Hong
Keng, on 26 November 2003 at

9:10 a.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the
audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and
auditors for the year ended 30
June 2003.

To declare a final dividend of
HK2.6 cents per share for the
year ended 30 June 2003.

To elect directors and to
authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration,.

To appoint auditors and to
authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider
and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c), the
exercise by the directors of
the Company during the
Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the
capital of the Company and
to make or grant offers,
agreements and options
which might require the
exercise of such power be
and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph
(a) shall authorise the
directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period
to make or grant offers,
agreements and options
which might require the
exercise of such power after
the end of the Relevant
Period;

(c) the aggregate nominali
amount of share capital
allotted cr agreed
conditionally or

unconditionally to be
allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise)
by the directors of the
Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a),
otherwise than pursuant to
a Rights Issue or scrip
dividend scheme or similar
arrangement of the
Company or the exercise of
the subscription rights
under the share option
scheme of the Company, or
the warrants of the
Company, shall not exceed
20 percent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the
share capital of the
Company in issue as at the
date of this resolution and
the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this
resolution:

“Relevant Period” means
the period from the passing
of this resolution until
whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the
next annual general
meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the
period within which the
next annual general
meeting of the
Company is required by
the Bye-laws of the
Company or any
applicable faw to be
held; and

(iii) the revocation or
variation of this
resolution by an
ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the
Company in general
meeting; and

"Rights Issue” means an
offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders
of shares on the register of
members of the Company
on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then
holdings of such shares

(subject to such exclusion or
other arrangements as the
directors of the Company
may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or
having regard to any
restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the
requirements of any
recognised regulatory body
or any stock exchange in
any territory outside Hong
Kong).”

By Order of the Board
Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 24 October 2003

Principal Office:
The Penthouse
Kantone Centre

1 Ning Foo Street
Chaiwan

Hong Kong

Notes:

(N

@

A member entitled to attend and vote
at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint proxies to
attend and vote in his stead. A proxy
need not be a member of the
Company. In order to be valid, the
form of proxy must be deposited at the
Company’s principal office in Hong
Kong together with a power of
attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy of that power or
authority, not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting.

The register of members of the
Company will be closed from 20
November 2003 to 26 November 2003,
both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the
final dividend to be approved at the
annual general meeting, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and, in the case of
warrantholders, all duly completed
subscription forms accompanied by the
relevant warrant certificates and the
appropriate subscription moneys, must
be lodged with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Secretaries Limited at G/F, Bank of East
Asia Harbour View Centre,

56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong by no later than 4:00 p.m. on

19 November 2003.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in sales of general systems products, provision of services and software
licensing, leasing of systems products and investments in telecommunications
networks and e-commerce projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 19 and in the accompany notes to the
financial statements. An interim dividend in scrip form equivalent to 1.6 cents
per share, with a cash option, was distributed to the shareholders during the
year. A final dividend in scrip form equivalent to 2.6 cents per share, with a
cash option, is proposed by the directors. Movements of the accumulated
profits are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the aggregate of
dividend reserve, general reserve, special reserve and the accumulated profits
of HK$1,543,823,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred an aggregate of approximately HK$6
million mainly in the acquisition of additional plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2003 are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Terry John Miller

Ms. Jennifer Cheung Mei Ha

Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian

Prof. Ye Pei Da

In accordance with section 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Lai Yat Kwong
and Mr. Terry John Miller retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. All other remaining directors continue in office.

No directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation {other than statutory
compensation).

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The Company, Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone"”), a 57% owned subsidiary
of the Company, and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a 78% owned subsidiary of the
Company, each has share option schemes under which eligible persons,
including directors of the Company, Kantone, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM or any
of their subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company, Kantone and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company, Kantone and
DIGITIALHONGKONG.COM are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 31 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors, or their
spouse and children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ [INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

At 30 June 2003, the interests and short positions of the directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO”)) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited were as
follows:

Number Number
Name of director Capacity of shares of warrants
HeExs E24: R #E BRESHA
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok The person who sets up the Note 1 Note 1

5he Sk discretionary trust and KisE Bigr
a discretionary object of the trust
TRIZEZEERNALRERERZ

Hb—-ZRHA

Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Bygas

The person who sets up the Note 2 -
discretionary trust and fiist2

a discretionary object of the trust

TRIZEREANDALREERZ

Eh—BRHA

Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok

The person who sets up the Note 3 -

HXEEE discretionary trust and ]
a discretionary object of the trust
DRIUFRRERNDALREAGTZ
ER—ZRHA

Notes:

1. 237,923,303 shares and 43,910,604 warrants were held by Lawnside international Limited
("Lawnside”). Lawnside is wholly owned by Lanchester Limited which is a company
beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the eligible discretionary objects of which
include Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok and his family members and staff of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Currently, only Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok and his family members are
discretionary objects of the trust. As at 30 June 2003, Lawnside held approximately 35.8%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company. The warrants issued by the Company will
expire on 12 January 2004.

2. 1,265,940,702 shares were heid by the Company and 399,084,420 shares were held by
Lawnside.

3. 117,300,000 shares were held by the Company and 2,669,171 shares were held by
Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in subsidiaries
held by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, none of the
directors or any of their associates had any interest or short position in the
securities, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as at 30 June 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries other than Kantone and its
subsidiaries (the “Kantone Group”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM and its
subsidiaries {the "DIGITALHK Group”) had the following transactions with the
Kantone Group and the DIGITALHK Group:

Transactions Transactions
with the with the
Kantone DIGITALHK
Group Group
HEE RYBES
#H2%S BEZRS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHER

Fees received for the provision of office premises
and facilities, and management services 1,440 -
Purchases of pagers and equipment 47 -

Registration fee, annual fee and technical

fee paid - 945
Administration fees received - 960
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EMBRG2R BEAFEERBNIA
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Name Capacity
2% S

Credit Suisse Group (Note Fi3)
corporation

Interest of controlled

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
above transactions were carried out in the usual course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2003, the following persons (other than a director and chief
executive of the Company disclosed under directors’ interests and short
positions in securities) had interests in the share capital of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

REG oA zER

Interest of controlled -

corporation

REHARZER

Interest of controlled -

corporation

Number Description of Number of
of shares equity derivatives underlying shares
B#®E BESETRRNA HERHHE
1,769,178 - -
conversion right to convert the bond 41,483,475
issued by the Company into shares
BARTBRITZEFERBREZBRE
warrants to subscribe for shares 5,424,576

RERD 2 RBREE

REHORzES

Mk RIZFE=FXAZ=1H8 Credit Suisse
GroupJRig R & % 5985,804/ £ 1 8148
BARM AT

REXRIBFCESESRARIATHEE
ERIBR=ZFANA=ZTH BBEESR
HEGEBRETRAAATREZIESE
LA R E M A TR AL Z R AR
HEFEERELHE-

Note:  As at 30 June 2003, Credit Suisse Group was also deemed to have short interest in

985,804 underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein and disclosed under directors’ interests and short
positions in securities, as at 30 June 2003, according to the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, there was
no person who had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the convertible bonds, and warrants and share options as set out in
notes 28, 30 and 31 respectively to the financial statements, the Company had
no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights
as at 30 June 2003 and there was no exercise of convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year. :

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 June 2003, the aggregate amount of turnover and

purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
respectively represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover and

purchases.

SIGNIFICANT POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Details of a significant post balance sheet event are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best Practice
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Paul Kan Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
24 October 2003
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Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 19 to 76 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on
those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of The Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. in forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2003 and of the profit and
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Hong Kong
24 October 2003
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Py =
REBRRE
For the year ended 30 June 2003
BRE_RRZIFAA=ZTBLER

Income Statement

Notes Hitt 2003 2002
—®e=% o2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER THERT
(restated)
(&%)
2R Turnover 4 1,851,848 1,633,388
HEERENL Direct operating expenses {936,231) (840,396)
B AR Gross profit 915,617 792,992
HERBTHEHASER WA Gain on disposal of interest in
e-commerce projects 33,723 26,213
EmEERA Other operating income 5 42,949 31,001
oA Distribution costs (54,250) (47,184)
—BRITBE S General and administrative expenses (133,975) (151,563)
EREE Depreciation and amortisation {402,389) {399,680)
HERAS Research and development (6,790) (14,763)
REFHEHEERMER Impairment losses recognised for interest in
ZREEE e-commerce projects (91,661) -
HERBEERMER Impairment [osses recognised for interest in
ZRERBE telecommunications projects (34,974) -
CHRRZEEEE Actuarial losses recognised - (66,472)
Hugex Other operating expenses 6 - (7,053)
BREF Profit from operations 7 268,250 163,491
HEHBARZEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (752) -
BN A Finance costs 8 (27,335) (31,071)
BRI TR Profit before taxation 240,163 132,420
PR Taxation 9 (1,429) (427)
RETLBBREERS AN Profit before minority interests 238,734 131,993
DR RER Minority interests (47,487) 1,047
REFET Net profit for the year 191,247 133,040
B2 Dividends 10 27,604 23,379
BRER Earnings per share 11
-EF - Basic 31.44 cents#fll  25.06 centsifll
-3y - Diluted 29.41 centsifll 24.76 centsi#E il
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| Balance Sheet

Consolidated

RAEERER

At 30 June 2003
RZEBE=§RA=TH

Notes B ix 2003 2002
—BE=x BT -F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL FET
(restated)
(E)
ERDEE Non-current assets
NE - BERE Property, plant and equipment 12 93,670 158,909
ZiF B Systems and networks 13 1,262,865 769,035
BTFHEHERER Interest in e-commerce projects 15 390,499 631,036
BRIEEES Interest in telecommunications projects 16 360,202 483,214
BHERE Investments in securities 17 194,633 126,958
REBE RNz ER Interest in an associate 18 46,500 46,500
®E Deposits 19 396,240 540,093
2,744,609 2,755,745
MBEE Current assets
B Inventories 20 35,214 49,736
EUWE S REMER Trade and other receivables 21 911,836 509,328
FE Ui B 8 2 B 3R Amount due from an associate 14,200 -
AR E IR Taxation recoverable 1,034 1,057
BHIRE Investments in securities 17 - 2
FRROTEFRRS Deposits, bank balances and cash 22 573,142 626,001
1,535,426 1,186,124
REAE Current liabilities
EREEREMER Trade and other payables 23 108,517 117,680
RERE Warranty provision 24 2,058 1,959
RRERIETE Retirement benefits obligations 78,114 71,879
EERE Customers’ deposits 23,374 24,391
RN BITR Taxation payable 46 238
BRITEE -RN—FARIA Bank borrowings — amount due
within one year 25 322,384 323,164
EpEE-RN—ERIH Other borrowings - amount due
within one year 26 8,191 11,481
HMEAEEAE-RN—FAME Obligations under finance leases
~ amount due within one year 27 519 908
543,203 551,700
MBAESFE Net current assets 992,223 634,424
AELERBARG Total assets less current liabilities 3,736,832 3,390,169
DEIRE Minority interests 301,144 256,685




Notes Ffix 2003 2002
—9e= TBR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(restated)
(E3))
EXRBAE Non-current liabilities
RITEE-R—FEIH Bank borrowings - amount due
after one year 25 167,907 109,661
EmEE-N—F%435 Other borrowings — amount due
after one year 26 13,605 18,574
BEEEAE-N-FERIH Obligations under finance leases
- amount due after one year 27 334 759
AR ES Convertible bonds 28 42,888 62,386
BT IE Deferred taxation 29 190 40
224,924 191,420
EESE Net assets 3,210,764 2,942,004
BELEE Capital and reserves
g Share capital 30 66,430 56,978
#E Reserves 32 3,144,334 2,885,086
BRES Shareholders’ funds 3,210,764 2,942,064

RIOERTCAMBIMBRRERR_FE=
FTATTREREEIHBERATIES

RREE:

Paul KAN Man Lok
[(1prg
Director
BHE

by:

Leo KAN Kin Leung

MER
Director
5E

The financial statements on pages 19 to 76 were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 October 2003 and are signed on its behalf
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Balance
Sheet
BEESER

At 30 June 2003
RZBEZHFXAZTHE

Notes HizE 2003 2002
ot 109 —ETE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
ERBEE Non-current assets
MBARZEER Investments in subsidiaries 14 206,906 206,906
BHIRE Investments in securities 17 186,960 118,560
BB AT 28R interest in an associate 18 330,500 330,500
e Deposits 19 117,000 111,425
841,366 767,391
MEAE Current assets
E iR Other receivables 450 837
UK B ARE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,423,799 1,370,590
e B R AR IR Amount due from an associate 14,200 -
ERRTEERRS Deposits, bank balances and cash 22 2,968 46,459
1,441,417 1,417,886
mEBAE Current liabilities
HMETERRK Other payables 26,994 2,760
ERHTB 2 RRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 25,428 28,420
RITRE-R—FAIH Bank borrowings - amount due
within one year 25 - 53,333
52,422 84,513
RBEERE Net current assets 1,388,995 1,333,373
BEERERRDEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,230,361 2,100,764
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
RITEE-R—FRIH Bank borrowings — amount due
after one year 25 160,000 106,667
AR EH Convertible bonds 28 42,888 62,386
202,888 169,053
BAEZE Net assets 2,027,473 1,931,711
RRs R & Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 30 66,430 56,978
wE Reserves 32 1,961,043 1,874,733
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 2,027,473 1,931,711

Paul KAN Man Lok

i
Director
B=

Leo KAN Kin Leung

BER
Director

EE



RERRERSBR

For the year ended 30 June 2003
BE-RR=FSA=TELFE

Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

2003 2002
—2e== —BR-&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
E1) At beginning of the year
~REZ5| - as originally stated 2,983,035 2,585,068
—EHmAEE (ME2) - prior period adjustment (note 2) (40,971) (3,176)
—-87) - as restated 2,942,064 2,581,892
BENER 2 EERERES Exchange difference arising on translation of operation
i i SRR S IR R R R outside Hong Kong not recognised in the consolidated
ZERZEE income statement (4,015) 1,458
ATINREMBETRAMEELEZHE  Premium arising from issue of shares
— B SRR - on acquisition of an investment in securities 62,700 -
—REBRnRiREs - on conversion of convertible bonds 17,460 -
— SRR S - on distribution of scrip dividend 11,815 1,019
— IR RREE - on exercise of warrants 4,618 22,640
BITRMG Issue of shares
—RUREEHIRE - on acquisition of an investment in securities 5,700 118,560
~BABRTRERES - on conversion of convertible bonds 2,038 -
—HITERREE - on exercise of warrants 434 100,095
—RAIFIRAEE - on bonus warrants - 21
- RAIENBEAS - on distribution of scrip dividends (11,815) (1,019)
INEFE 4 Net profit for the year 191,247 133,040
ERERE Dividends paid (11,482) (15,642)
Elbz3: N Capital reduction - (1,366,003)
BB ARFNEE 2 EE Reserve arising from capital reduction - 1,366,003
FE At end of the year 3,210,764 2,942,064
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Consolidated

GERTRPR

For the year ended 30 June 2003
BEZTP=FRAZTBLAEFER

Cash Flow Statement

2003 2002
—8E=fF ZEERC
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT FHET
{restated)
(B3
BEEBZRSRE Cash flows from operating activities
B B8 A g A Profit before taxation 240,163 132,420
HE: Adjustments for:
ME BERRBAE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 77,678 85,971
AR En Amortisation of systems and networks 128,015 39,520
EFHEEEREEN Amortisation of investments in
e-commerce projects 142,289 170,778
BHRIEERAEE Amortisation of investments in
telecommunications projects 54,407 103,411
HELSREFBEAZHEERE Impairment losses recognised for
investments in securities 2 3,887
AREFHEREELDAER Impairment losses recognised for
ZREEE interest in e-commerce projects 91,661 -
HEMEE RS TRBZRESE impairment losses recognised for
interest in telecommunications projects 34,974 -
HEME HEIHREZER Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 2 185
Hi Ul RIERE Allowance for other receivables - 1,051
BITREMGERZFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 27,125 28,277
MEBREZHMHER Finance charges on finance leases 210 324
TEREFEITER Issue costs of convertible bonds - 2,470
AW A Interest income (11,923) (13,108)
HEEFHEHEEBE 2 W& Gain on disposal of interest in
e-commerce projects (33,723) (26,213)
BEREZREBA Dividend income from investments
in securities (8,344) (1,346)
HEMBRT ZEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 752 ~
BERZIBEEE Actuarial losses recognised - 66,472
HHEBMEE RESE Interest in telecommunications projects
BEER and systems and networks written off - 2,379
Tﬁﬁl%mﬁ Deposits written off - 9
ERSBHHARNANER TS Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on inter-company balances (1,030) 1,192
LEESEYNZEERERE Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 742,258 597,679
FERD Decrease in inventories 18,459 10,844
& 5 RHE i EURGRIEE N Increase in trade and other receivables (353,284) (74,847)
FEH—REE L DRI FIEE M Increase in amount due from an associate (14,200) -
g5 REMBEARELEMCRD) Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables 23,272 (42,392)
RERE O B (Decrease) increase in warranty provision (144) 73
ER&Ee (R 8B (Decrease) increase in customers’ deposits (1,017) 20,174
BEELEVZREEER Cash generated from operations 415,344 511,531
ERREBREM Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (498) (927)
B RE A E R IR Taxation in other jurisdictions paid {964) (500)
BEXBABIREERE Net cash from operating activities 413,882 510,104




Notes izt 2003 2002
—Pe=s —RE=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
(restated)
(EF])
REERDz2HRGRE Cash flows from investing activities
RERBHEES BMEBER Deposits paid in connection with projects
ERBRBZENRS relating to systems and networks,
telecommunications projects and
internet operations (396,240) (461,198)
ERRBEEER Payments for systems and networks (212,552) (73,644)
BEYVE HEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,216) (11,492)
BERARRBBIES BHIES Refund of deposits paid in connection
REBPEBzEHERS with projects relating to systems and
networks, telecommunications projects
and internet operations 130,800 -
BHFE Interest received 11,923 13,108
LEME BERRBZFEREA Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 247 168
LEBFREHEB ZAERE Proceeds from disposal of e-commence
projects 195 -
HEHBQE Disposal of subsidiaries 33 156 -
EREEREZEH Payments for investments in
telecommunications projects - (70,363)
EABHRE Purchase of investments in securities - (725)
B E Dividend received - 1,346
BEESREEFE Net cash used in investing activities (471,687) (602,800)
BAEPDZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
MEEZEX New loans raised 101,990 -
ERYBREDERME Net cash inflow from trust receipts and
RE&ERE import loans 8,111 27,405
HBEZARTHNER New block discounting loans raised 6,380 9,922
BITRGAEHRE Proceeds from issue of shares 5,052 122,756
ERHF8 Interest paid (27,125) (28,277)
HEEE Repayment of borrowings (17.751) (39,236)
B R Dividends paid (11,482) (15,642)
MEREEEAE Repayment of obligations under
finance leases {(1,037) (2,415)
BREEECHRER Finance charges on finance leases {(210) (324)
BT RRESFURESER Net cash receipt from issue of convertible
(B 402,470,000 T2 bonds (net of issue costs of
BITRA) HK$2,470,000) - 59,916
MEFBREEE Net cash from financing activities 63,928 134,105
ReRBEEHE2BMER Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,123 41,409
FNRERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 490,374 454,426
Exg2s iy Effect on foreign exchange rate changes (6,552) (5,461)
FHEBeRBLEHE Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 35 489,945 490,374
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Notes to the
Financial Statements

PHBR By

For the year ended 30 June 2003
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GENERAL

The Company was originally incorporated in the Cayman islands but
subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries (the
Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Group"”) are principally engaged in sales of general systems products,
provision of services and software licensing, leasing of systems products
and investments in telecommunications networks and e-commerce projects.

ADQPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first time a number of
new and revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAPs")
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of presentation of the
consolidated cash flow statement and the introduction of the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Foreign currencies

SSAP 11 (Revised) “Foreign currency translation” has eliminated the choice
of translating the income statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong at
the closing rate for the period which was previously followed by the Group.
They are now required to be translated at an average rate. This change in
accounting policy has not had any material effect on the results for the
current or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow
statements”. Under SSAP 15 (Revised), cash flows are classified under three
headings — operating, investing and financing, rather than the previous five
headings. Interest and dividends received and paid, which were previously
presented under a separate heading, are classified as operating, investing
and financing cash flows respectively. Cash flows arising from taxes on
income are classified as operating activities, unless they can be separately
identified with investing or financing activities.

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34 “"Employee benefits”,
which introduces measurement rules for employee benefits, including
retirement benefit schemes. The principal effect of the implementation of
SSAP 34 is in connection with the recognition of costs for the Group’s
defined benefit pension scheme. In prior periods, the expected costs of
providing pensions under the Group's pension scheme are charged to the
income statement over the periods benefiting from the services of
employees at a level percentage of pensionable salary.

Under SSAP 34, the cost of providing retirement benefits under the Group’s
defined benefit retirement benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out annually.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the present
value of the Group’s pension obligations and fair value of plan assets are
amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of the
employees participating in the plan. Past service cost is recognised
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE - Continued

Employee benefits - Continued

As a result of the changes described above, the Group has determined that
the transitional liability for its defined benefit plan at the date of adoption
of SSAP 34 was HK$71,879,000 (of which HK$66,306,000 arose in prior year)
more than the liability that would have been recognised at the same date
using the previous accounting policy. This amount has been recognised
immediately, taking into account of the effect of minority interests, with
adjustment of approximately HK$40,706,000 and HK$265,000 to the
opening balances of accumulated profits and translation reserve at 1 July
2002 respectively. The change in policy has resulted in a decrease in the net
profit for the year ended 30 June 2002 of HK$37,530,000.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as
follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from or up to their effective
dates of acquisition or disposal respectively.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary or an associate at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 continues to be held in
reserves and will be charged to the income statement at the time of
disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the
goodwill is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 July 2001 is capitalised and
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated economic useful life.
Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate is included within the
carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate
at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 continues to

be held in reserves, and will be credited to income statement at the time of
disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate.
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Notes to the
Financial Statements

B B et

For the year ended 30 June 2003
BE_FT=FRAZTALEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Negative goodwill - Continued

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate after 1 July
2001 is deducted from the carrying value of that associate. Negative
goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries after 1 July 2001 is
presented separately in the balance sheet as a deduction from assets.
Negative goodwill is released to income based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted. To the extent that the
negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses anticipated at the
date of acquisition, it is released to income in the period in which those
losses or expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as
income on a straight line basis over the remaining average useful life of
the identifiable acquired depreciable assets. To the extent that such
negative goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired
identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income immediately.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has been
passed.

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant licensing
agreements are formally concluded.

Income from certain e-commerce and telecommunications projects where
the Group is contracted to receive a pre-determined minimum sum over the
period of the projects is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in these e-commerce
and telecommunications projects. Income from other e-commerce and
telecommunications projects are recognised when the Group’s right to
receive the distributions has been established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties under
operating leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Income from investments in securities is recognised when the Group’s right
to receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Costs incurred by the Group in establishing its telecommunications
networks include, among other things, property and equipment, internally
developed and acquired software, legal organisation costs and the
acquisition of required licenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Property, plant and equipment - Continued

Depreciation and amortisation to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives after taking into account their
estimated residue value, using the straight line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

Buildings 2-5%
Plant and machinery and

telecommunications networks 10-50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33'3%

Motor vehicles 25%

Plant and machinery and telecommunications networks are not
depreciated until they are put into commercial use. Should the individual
telecommunications network, compieted or under development, become
technologically obsolete or commercially not viable, the carrying value of
the telecommunications network will be written off immediately to the
income statement.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as
owned assets over their estimated useful lives or, where shorter, the terms
of the leases.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased
assets to the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their
fair values at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the
lessor, net of interest charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation of the Group. The finance costs, which represent the
difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the
assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the period of
the respective leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Leases - Continued

All other leases are classified as operating leases and their rentals payable
are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease,

Systems and networks
Systems and networks are stated at cost less amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Systems and networks represent all direct costs incurred by the Group in
setting up systems and networks, including the cost of equipment,
development cost and subcontracting expenditure. Such assets are
recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

— an asset is created that can be identified (such as software and new
processes);

- itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic
benefits; and

- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Development cost that cannot fulfil the above conditions is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Systems and networks that
fulfil the above conditions are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years. Where the
recoverable amount of systems and networks has declined below their
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline in
value.

Investments in e-commerce projects
Investments in e-commerce development projects are stated at cost less
amortisation and any identified accumulated impairment losses.

Investments in e-commerce projects represent the Group’s investment costs
incurred on internet-based business projects over which the Group received
distributions from these projects based on an agreed percentage of the net
revenue of each project or a pre-determined guaranteed return over a
fixed period of time. Payments receivables each year for projects with pre-
determined return are apportioned between income and reduction of the
carrying value of the investments so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment in these e-commerce projects. The investment
costs of other projects are written off using the straight line method over
the estimated life of the individual project from the date of
commencement of commercial operations subject to a maximum of five
years. Where the estimated recoverable amount of these investments falls
below their carrying amount, the carrying amount of the investments, to
the extent that it is considered to be irrecoverable, is written off
immediately to the income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the balance sheet of the
Company at cost or carrying value, less any identified impairment loss.
Results in subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received or receivable during the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Investments in telecommunications projects

Investments in telecommunications projects are stated at cost less
amortisation and any identified impairment losses.

Investments in tefecommunications projects represent the Group's
investment costs incurred on telecommunications projects over which the
Group receives distributions from these projects based on an agreed
percentage of the net revenue of each project or a pre-determined
guaranteed return over a fixed period of time. Payments receivables each
year for projects with pre-determined return are apportioned between
income and reduction of the carrying value of the investments so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in these
telecommunications projects. The investment costs of other projects are
written off using the straight line method over the estimated life of the
individual project from the date of commencement of commercial
operations subject to a maximum of five years. Where the estimated
recoverable amount of these investments, to the extent that it is
considered to be irrecoverable, is written off immediately to the income
statement.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The carrying
amount of such interest is reduced to recognise any identified impairment
loss in the value of individual investments.

investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are
initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as
investment securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long term
strategic purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as
reduced by any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and
losses included in the net profit or loss for the year.

Patents
The costs of patents are written off to the income statement in the year of
acquisition.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds are regarded as liabilities unless conversion actually
occurs.

The costs incurred in connection with the issue of convertible bonds are
charged immediately to the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year after adjusting
for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. Certain items of income
and expense are recognised for tax purposes in a different accounting
period from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The tax effect of the resulting timing differences, computed under the
liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will
crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Research and development costs

Research costs are charged to the income statement in the year in which
they are incurred. Development costs are charged to the income statement
in the year in which it is incurred except where a major project is
undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that development costs will be
recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs are
deferred and written off over the life of the project from the date of
commencement of commercial operation subject to a maximum of five
years.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates
ruling on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt with
in the income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the results of
operations outside Hong Kong are translated using the average rates for
the year. The assets and liabilities of the operations outside Hong Kong are
translated using the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. On
consolidation, any differences arising on translation of operations outside
Hong Kong are dealt with in the translation reserve.

Retirement benefit cost
Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as expenses as they
fall due.

For the Group's defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the present
value of the Group's pension obligations and the fair value of scheme
assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of
the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately to
the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised
on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits
become vested.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial
gains and losses and unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the
fair value of scheme assets.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORRMATION
Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods
sold and services provided by the Group to outside customers, licensing fees
received and receivable and distributions received and receivable from the
Group's investments in telecommunications and e-commerce projects

during the year.

(a) Business segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into five
main operating business - sales of

of services and software licensing, ?e

eneral systems products, provision
asing of systems products and

investments in telecommunications networks and e-commerce projects.
These businesses are the basis on which the Group reports its primary

SRENZBEEE- segment information.
Investments in
Sales of Provision of telecommuni- Investments
general services and Leasing cations in
systems software of systems networks e-commerce
products licensing products and projects projects  Consolidated
f-i ) EREg FHABR Ley. 1]
R42d BANES 373 REZHR EE2& &8
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TEn T TEL THRL
BE-98=5AA=+BLEE Year ended 30 June 2003
B TURNOVER
HIEELRA External and total revenue 1,130,258 481,368 17,609 149,806 12807 1,851,848
84 RESULTS
AEEHE Segment result 100,437 211,379 11,084 47,481 {115,756) 254,625
RKak) Dividend income 8344
FaBA Interest income 193
FREAWR Unallocated corporate expenses {6,642)
BeEH Profit from operations 268,250
HERELIER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (752)
HEHE Finance costs (27,335)
BEHEH Profit before taxation 240,163
BE Taxation (1,429)
FHOUREREZEA Profit before minority interests 238,734
PHREES Minority interests (47,487)
ZEREH Net profit for the year 191,247
R-22z87A=48 As at 30 June 2003
AE ASSETS
SRIE Segment assets 1,281,390 1,109,643 13,038 541,206 489,581 3,434,858
RBBATLER Interest in an associate 46,500
BERE Investments in securities 194,633
FRERAEE Unallocated corporate assets 604,044
FauRE Consalidated total assets 4,280,035
a LIABILITIES
ARRE Segment liabilities 117,344 39,610 11,865 28,034 9,360 206,213
FARARAR Unatlocated corporate liabilities 561,914
EEEEL Consolidated total liabilities Tm
—————
AfEE OTHER INFORMATION
92 BERREZASRE  Capital additions of property,
plant and equipment 3,763 1,244 1,287 - - 6,294
ERRBRIERRE Capital additions of systems and networks - 212,552 - - - 02,55
EFN LYY Capital additions of deposits 240,240 39,000 - 117,000 - 396,240
FERRS Depreciation and amortisation 2,792 177,914 5,986 54,408 142,289 402,389
HETBEARRRREL Impairment losses recognised for
BESR interest in e-commerce projects - - - - 91,661 91,661
HBNEAGAREI HESE  Impairment losses recognised for
interest in telecommunications projects - - - 34,974 - 34,974
HEBTHEREGR2 R Gainon disposal of interest
in e-commerce projects - - - - 3713 33723
LENE BERREL Loss {gain) on disposal of property,
B3 kg plant and equipment 2) 4 - - - 2
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BE_FE-EXNAZTBILERE

4. BLERSESE-® 4. TURNOQVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued
(a) ¥BSE-& {a) Business segments - Continued
Investments in
Sales of Provision of tefe- Investments
general services and Leasing  communications in
systems software of systems networks g-commerce
products ficensing products and projects projects  Consolidated
HE-B REBBR iES ERL ETHE
BRER Bt HT] ER RE2RE RE2RE &a
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER TR FHT Tan TR
(restated)
(E31)
BEZBT-FARZTELFR  Year ended 30 June 2002
g2g TURNOVER
HIEEBUA External and total revenue 1,083,299 328,984 41,867 137,950 61,288 1,633,388
1 RESULTS
FEEE Segment result 104,863 150,778 (20,002) 43,165 (88,374 190,430
REBA Dividend income 1,346
HEKA Interest income 13,108
FARRERE Unallocated corporate expenses (41,393)
mgiE3 Profit from operations 163,491
HEHE Finance costs (31.011)
RENEH Profit before taxation 132420
it Taxation {427)
ATORBRRREZEN Profit before minority interests 131,993
PEBRER Minority interests 1,047
RERHH Net profit for the year 133,040
RZFE-ERAZTE As at 30 June 2002
g& ASSETS
HEAE Segment assets 557,033 936,929 43,345 124817 874,762 3,136,886
REERE ES Interest in an associate 46,500
ERlE investments in securities 126,958
FAERFAE Unallocated corporate assets 631,525
GaghE Consolidated total assets 3,941,869
B8 LIABILITIES
SERE Segment liabilities 99,423 37492 30,304 34,506 9,360 211,085
FARLFAE Unallocated corporate liabilities 532,035
BoLeh Consolidated total liabilities 743120
RtEs OTHER INFORMATION
05 BERRE2ERRE Capital additions of property,
plant and equipment 7485 3,703 2412 - - 13,660
ZERABIETRE Capital additions of systems
and networks 73,625 19 - - - 73,604
BHEERLRE Capital additions of
telecommunications projects - - - 70,363 - 70,363
BEVERARE Capital addition of deposits 85,250 245,148 - - 130,800 461,198
HEREY Depreciation and amortisation 42,900 76,337 5,254 103411 170,778 399,680
RRERABIIAERA Impairment losses recognised for
investments in securities - - - - 3,887 3,887
HERTEERERR I AE Gain on disposal of interest in
e-commerce projects - - - - 26,213 26,213
HENZ AERREZ Loss {gain) on disposal of
BB (s property, plant and equipment {35) 11 28 - - 185
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION ~ Continued

(b) Geographical segments
(i) The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/

BRIE Z RiRH) services:
Revenue by Profit
geographical segment from operations
BRRESRISIBA BB
year ended 30 June year ended 30 June
#EXB=+BiLERE BEAA=T+HLEE
2003 2002 2003 2002
put. 3. 3% ZERFE —gR=s ZEREC-F
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET FHET FET
hEARLRNE People’s Republic of China
(+E 8 (the “PRC") including Hong
EERAM Kong and Macau 1,433,733 1,298,434 206,879 203,342
B Europe 304,642 243,881 19,812 (65,217)
Hig Others 113,473 91,073 41,559 25,366
me s Consolidated total 1,851,848 1,633,388 268,250 163,491

TREHNFERBHBLETS
WAz PAEREE MR

(ii) The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and capital additions to property, plant and equipment,
systems and networks, interest in e-commerce projects and

BREREFHEREMNER telecommunications projects, analysed by the geographical market
BEZERNRE D to which the assets are located:
Carrying amount
of segment assets Capital additions
SEEEZREHE BEER
30.6.2003 30.6.2002 30.6.2003 30.6.2002
—Re=f —EE & —eR=x —BE-F
~A=+H NBZ+8 ~B=+8 NA=+A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&ET FHET FHT FHET
hEARSRNE People’s Republic of China
BEEB including Hong Kong and
RS Macau 3,056,802 3,005,908 212,867 537,233
B Europe 141,293 176,862 4,581 10,338
Hi Others 1,081,940 759,099 397,638 71,294
BERE Consolidated total 4,280,035 3,941,869 615,086 618,865
EiaEEwmA 5. OTHER QPERATING INCOME
2003 2002
—Be=# BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
TEHREREWATIPI AR included in other operating income is
PN net investment income as follows:
BEHIREZREBRA Dividend income from investments in securities 8,344 1,346
RBITERREERBERZFE  Interest earned on bank deposits and balances 11,923 13,108
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For the year ended 30 June 2003
BEZTE=FRAZTELEE

HAEBETY 6. OTHMER OPERATING EXPENSES
2003 2002
—B®=x ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
HREFREFMERZAEESE Impairment losses recognised for investments
in securities - 3,887
RERBEME Systems and networks written off - 2,115
HiBRERZBE Allowance for other receivables - 1,051
- 7,053
BEEH 7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
2003 2002
=8Bz ZEFTE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL
(restated)
(&7
BERF BNk Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
EEMe (M) Directors’ remuneration (Note (i)) 13,372 26,283
BIRA(TREEEMNS) Staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration 99,610 113,736
CHEAZBEER Actuarial losses recognised - 66,472
RIREF T B (B 3G Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Note (ii)) 6,353 4,512
BImABE Total staff costs 119,335 211,003
EFEEREREZEH Amortisation of investments in e-commerce projects 142,289 170,778
BERIHEREIEH Amortisation of investments in telecommunications
projects 54,407 103,411
EphBBzEY Amortisation of systems and networks 128,015 39,520
E: Depreciation on:
EEEE Owned assets 76,532 84,976
MEHEC-ERE Assets under finance leases 1,146 995
402,389 399,680
ZEEBE Auditors’ remuneration 3,034 3,745
BHREEZHE Cost of inventories recognised 368,109 470,249
HEVE BERABIES Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 185
RREEVREC 2 Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
BEREMNRERE: in respect of:
HEME Rented premises 5,432 5,279
HERHE Machinery and equipment 5,451 6,191
REHA: and after crediting:
HEBRFERBREENEE Rental income from leasing of plant and machinery
FRiszEE A and telecommunications networks 17,609 41,867




7.

BEBN -5 7. PROFIT FROWM OPERATIONS - Continued
By Notes:
0 HHEXEREEAM2ZEAR (i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments
2003 2002
—ee=sF ZERCE
HK$'000 HK$000
FHT FET
¥ Directors
BUYFNTHEZRES Fees to independent non-executive directors 195 145
RITEF2EBAE: Other emoluments to executive directors:
BFeRAMEN Salaries and other benefits 4,043 4,391
BITERBBRZES Performance related incentive payments 9,086 21,699
BB E MR Retirement benefit scheme contribution 48 48
13,372 26,283

B R-RBBE-BNB-ETF
MEAIE2,000,0003 K2 F) 2 HAGE:
TEBAS0.4656/ 8T FRALEE
BERECETE-RBRBREHL
BREERBRMEHE BREFESS
££2,000,00013 388 £160,00013 1T
FEAERS.QEL -ZFHEREER
ZRBRSEC-BELBER

HEZHE (TEERREFNR) TFT
FIEEE:

In addition to the above, on 8 February 2000, an aggregate of 2,000,000 share
options of the Company were granted to certain directors at an exercise price of
HK$0.4656 per share. No share option was exercised during the year. Following
the bonus issue and the consolidation of shares in 2002, the number of share
options was adjusted from an aggregate of 2,000,000 to 160,000 at an exercise
price of HK$5.82 per share. These share options were lapsed on 7 February 2003.

Emoluments of the directors, excluding the share option benefits, were within
the following bands:

Number of director(s)

HEAY
2003 2002
—e¥=%F ZBEIF
£ —1,000,0005& 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 7 7
1,000,001# T — 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 1
11,000,001/ 7T — 11,500,000/ 7T HK$11,000,001 - HK$11,500,000 1 -
23,500,0015% 7T — 24,000,0008 T HK$23,500,001 ~ HK$24,000,000 - 1
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BE_FR=FARZTAHLEE

7.

EERT -8
W —
0 FHREAGENZEE-A

(ii)

1]
ARBANESFATERERE(ZE
BoF BRB)TLREE EHeHE
BREX-FEEES =R (ZFF
FZRB)EAaFAT (UHERAZE
B) BT

7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS - Continued
Notes: - Continued

(i)

Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments - Continued
Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2002: two) directors
of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2002: three) highest paid employees of the
Group, not being a director of the Company, are as follows:

2003 2002

—e%=x —BE=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

B E iR Salaries and other benefits 3,511 3,703
RIFERREUZES Performance related incentive payments 31 -
RRERFEHR Retirement benefit scheme contribution 439 729
3,981 4,432

R-BBRRE-_ANR AURSFE
SR HR - (EERDANEE) EE
1,000,000{3 R A BB (THEESR
0.4656 B T  ERT ST ABRLECHE
fTEZBRE_FETURERRERG
EoHe BRIERE 541,000,000
AR ESL0, 00017 T HEEARSAKS.82
BT RTEREDR-_FZ=5=A
E=ES 8

HEEB#ME CTREBRIENZR) N
FTHEE:

On 8 February 2000, 1,000,000 share options of the Company were granted to
an employee of the five highest, not being a director of the Company, at an
exercise price of HK$0.4656 per share. No share option was exercised during the
year. Following the bonus issue and the consolidation of shares in 2002, the
number of share options was adjusted from an aggregate of 1,000,000 to 80,000
at an exercise price of HK$5.82 per share. These share options were lapsed on 7
February 2003.

Emoluments of these employees, excluding the share option benefits, were
within the following bands:

Number of employee(s)

RBREAN
2003 2002
—T¥=5 —BFF
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 2
1,500,001 7% — 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 - 1
BHERERIHR {(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2003 2002
—®e=x —2ERCF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(restated)
(E3)

mAEE TREARGEZGZ Retirement benefit scheme contributions to
RRBF G BIMERR the Group’s defined contribution scheme 1,718 692
BWOESk T HRK Less: Forfeited contributions (241) -
1,477 692

FAREZ EREFN AT Retirement benefit scheme contributions to
ZIRRE R AT B the Group’s defined benefit scheme 4,924 3,868
6,401 4,560




7. EEBH-&
a8

(i)

BB RRR-E

SERGEE N
AREBETETHRAFAKRESER
RY—BREREMF M -ZEFHZE
ERFEUAESRRE LERA
BUERABHZESR-

ERBRMBRZRAEIEFRHERTA
SMBHHRAREZLROEHES
XHZER-HMEARGARAREY
BERERE FEAAREL 2
HPERB DR Z HRe

REER MRERERELHUWE
£ 2GR B EERE BB R
RBFERMER(ZFR_F:8]) -

EZERRE+_RE FEURER
RERZFERABERSERMER
MmE((amal) i -ageReRra
BRZEMEHHARENRAEFTRE
REMGHHAFIEE LERBERE
RO fED 2 SR

EHEHEE
FREBTETHBARARI RS
EEZEBEREMGFH DR BITRR
ERERRBHRACERE®REN &
Bams Rt RBRENS -UAR
SAREFVBRZFEERBTRESNL
AEt .

BEAEARBENER-FRAMH BN
ERABTHEEMUATFEGFEZER IR
BERTFAR - BRBIZHY EE-BR
FESHERTERATHERE 2R
BREBIZEARENTIRARAFTRZ21.67%
E250% 2 - KRBT FMIBHAMIE
HRERBEM- BEZHHEEREGE
RERBFABREDIN BB E~
A—BHBE2gR EMick O'Lloant
EET UERZBE=FEAA=+A8
EFUBETETRREE - HEER
REBARBYBEADERREDRER
e RARSRRBZENEBIEY
B

RRZEEREBRERAOT:

ME=
BHzHBEEDR
Rz HFEAE
RRZEBEAREFE

PROFIT FROM QPERATIONS - Continued
Notes: — Continued

(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions — Continued

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have a retirement benefit scheme covering a
portion of their employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to the income statement
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the scheme. Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contribution payable by the Group is
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions which arose
upon employees leaving the scheme and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years (2002: nil).

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled all eligible employees in
Hong Kong into a mandatory provident fund (the “MPF“) scheme. The
retirement benefit cost of the MPF scheme charged to the consclidated income
statement represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group operates a self-administered, funded pension
scheme. The scheme provides defined pension benefits related to service, and
final earnings and capital sums on death. Membership is optional for all staff
paid monthly and aged over 21 years.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of
triennial valuations using the projected unit credit method are charged to the
income statement. Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at
a normal age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligations were carried out at 1 January 2002 by Mr. Mick
O’Loan, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries, and was updated to 30 June 2003
for the accounting reporting purpose. The assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of
return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries, pensions and share
dividends.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2003 2002

—Re=F ZRRE

Discount rate 5.25% 5.75%
Expected return on scheme assets 6.63% 6.76%
Expected rate of salary increase 3.50% 4.25%
Future pension increases 2.50% 2.75%
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BE_TT=FXRAZTHELFE

7 mempent g

=masy —E

B — 4

iy BHREHABBR-S
TEBRHE-F
EHZ-_ERTERATHACRER
BB 582 EEMER159,303,000
BT (ZBFE:161,483,00087T) -
MZEEEZREBEERREBEEER

PROFIT FROM QPERATIONS - Continued
Notes: - Continued

(ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions - Continued

Defined benefit scheme - Continued

The actual valuation updated to 30 June 2003 showed that the market value of
the scheme assets was HK$159,303,000 (2002: HK$161,483,000) and that the
actuarial value of these assets represented 59% (2002: 69%) of the benefits that
had accrued to members. The shortfall of HK$4,289,000, which is the excess of

Z59% (ZHER-F:69%)  BEN
4,289,000/ T2 M REE IABREE
BREAESHTREEQOFEZ10%K
DA ERBEEZ10% (ARZEAE)
ZHE RERBEECBHASEES
HOM0FEREH) REE-

HREREMNERSBNG L RARTHE
R EB|WT:

net unrecognised actuarial losses over the greater of 10% of the fair value of
scheme assets and 10% of the present value of funded obligations, is to be
cleared over the estimated remaining service period of current membership of

10 years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the

defined benefit pension scheme are as follows:

2003 2002

Z89=F EE-E

HK$°000 HK$/000

FHET FERT

BITRFA A Current service cost 4,924 3,868
R BAER Interest cost - 11,757
BREZHEEERR Expected return on scheme assets - (12,354)
RBEBRZEE Net actuarial losses - 66,472
4,924 69,743

FEEXHEFA-RRABRRAZ.

BAEE FHEENEKTEFENE
EZEBEMARERAR BT

The charge for the year has been included in general and administrative

expenses.

The amount inciuded in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s obligations

in respect of its defined benefit pension scheme is as follows:

2003 2002

-®e=s ZEREC-F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHER FEL

HHEEZARE Fair value of scheme assets 159,303 161,483
BAEFREIRE Present value of funded obligations (268,562) (233,362)
RERBZ BHESB Unrecognised actuarial fosses 31,145 -
(78,114) (71,879)

mMEFEZABFEEZINT: Movements in the net liability in the both years were as follows:

2003 2002

~B®=5 ZB8C-F

HKS000 HK$'000

FHET FRET

F¥) At beginning of the year (71,829) (5,573)
ERRE Currency realignment (6,487) (467)
EGABmR R0 Amount charged to the consolidated income statement (4,924) (69,743)
HE Contributions 5,176 3,904
FiE At end of the year (78,114) (71,879)




(i)

o g 8. FINANCE COSTS

2003 2002
—ee=F —EF_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
ROREGEEZFE: Interest on bank and other borrowings

~RAERABREE - wholly repayable within five years 26,935 28,050
- BARAFANEHEE - not wholly repayable within five years 190 227
REHEZMBER Finance charges on finance leases 210 324
ABRRERFZBITRE Issue costs of convertible bonds - 2,470
27,335 31,071

W 9. TAXATION
2003 2002
—Be=F g S
HK$'000 HK$000
TR FET

BAZ e The charge comprises:

EREFIEBR Hong Kong Profits Tax
—KERE - current year 806 94
- BEEEZTERE - underprovision in prior years - 374
Hin FEmREHIE Taxation in other jurisdictions 475 (44)
1,281 424
SR B E (M 5E29) Deferred taxation (note 29) 148 3
1,429 427

ERENEHNDURE TR ZEERY
BRE175% (ZBF2F:16%) 2
BHE -HAMEPAMERBENRERR
EHEEERAZHEHE-

HEBRREZREAAEERBAR

FBLSERBRRA THREEE HE
BRATENERRECUEMATIALE

AERBLERRZFERHAMTE29 -

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 29.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2002: 16%) on the estimated
assessable profits derived from Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a substantial
portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong and is accordingly not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such
ZHIE. profit is also not subject to taxation in any other jurisdictions.
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BHE_ZB=FR AZ=TBLER

10. BR 10. DIVIDENDS
2003 2002
—e®=F ZETR-F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TR
BB EF R 2 8BIE Fina! dividend proposed in scrip form equivalent to
REREBERER2.610 2.6 cents (2002: 2.5 cents) per share,
(ZZTZZF:2.54) with a cash option
EERE 17,272 14,245
ELURREARNREMFZHE/RS  Interim dividend paid in scrip
AERER .61 form equivalent to 1.6 cents
(ZEE=F:0.06250) - (2002: 0.0625 cents) per share, with a cash option
RERS 10,089 8,893
EEEZTRER Underprovision in prior year 243 241
27,604 23,379
—ERCFERERBREDRER-Z The proposed final dividend for 2003 is based on 664,300,351 shares in
E=ZFERAZ=Z+BZ2E2E8TERH issue at 30 June 2003.
HE

11.

SRET

EARBEEIEREF ZAETRT

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the

BigEtE following data:
2003 2002
—¥¥=F —ETF
HK$’'000 HK$-000
FHRT FET
(restated)
(&3
U EEAGRENZEH Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 191,247 133,040
Ealh BEgEyrE: Effect of dilutive potentia!l ordinary shares:
AR ES 2T A interest on convertible bonds 761 103
NAEREEsRAEN 2B Earnings for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share 192,008 133,143

Number of shares (In '000)

BHEE (LT8R
2003 2002
2= —ZBE-F
IS EEESREBF 2 ME Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
FHRDEE of calculating basic earnings per share 608,256 530,919
EERzETEEYE: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
ARRES Convertible bonds 43,361 3,646
REEE Warrants 1,281 2,813
fERR e Options - 459
44,642 6,918
AR EEEEBIRAN T g Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
THERHHBE of calculating diluted earnings per share 652,898 537,837

REEERER

Diluted earnings per share

29.41 centsi#ll

24.76 centsi il

BEER2ERBVOHAREBIZEY
EERRERKBAKARRZEZEM

EET

retirement benefit costs.

The earnings per share for the previous year has been adjusted to reflect
the retrospective application of the changes in the Group’s policy for




12. B -BERBE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and
machinery
and tele- Furniture
Land and communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
T RS BERHE GERER RE 5t
RBRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRT THER THT TR THT
E3 1. | THE GROUP
%311 CosT
R-ZFZE-F+H-8 At 1 July 2002 58,109 975,477 15,463 12,474 1,061,523
ERAR Currency realignment 1,501 24,564 - - 26,065
RE Additions - 6,236 58 - 6,294
ek Disposals - (9,265) (26) - (9,291)
BAGE Transferred to inventories - (6) - - (6)
RZBEZExXAZ+8 At 30June 2003 59,610 997,006 - 15,495 12,474 1,084,585
il DEPRECIATION
R-B2-F+A-8 At 1 )uly 2002 14,651 862,580 14,365 11,018 902,614
ERBR Currency realignment 308 19,357 - - 19,665
FRRE Provided for the year 1,818 74,825 398 637 77,678
HERR Eliminated on disposals - (9,020) (22) - (9,042)
RZBEZERBZ+H At 30 June 2003 16,777 947,742 14,7481 11,655 990,915
ARE W NET BOOK VALUES
RZEE=FXE=+8 At 30June 2003 42,833 49,264 754 819 93,670
RZBE-EXAS+HE At 30 June 2002 43,458 112,897 1,098 1,456 158,909
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12. MEEERRBE - 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFPMENT - Continued
THE GROUP
FER
2003 2002
—B¥%=sx —EEZ
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
REFBZHERSEETEESE: The net book values of the Group’s property
interests comprise:
REBUIIMERIEE Z Freehold properties held outside Hong Kong 14,671 13,917
KARBPEROYE: Leasehold properties:
RERBREZROYE Held in Hong Kong
—REZH - long leases 19,273 20,345
—hEZE - medium term leases 3,509 3,653
REBLSIMEZREZEZAWE  Held outside Hong Kong
—RERY - long leases 1,160 1,110
—hEEE - medium term leases 4,220 4,433
42,833 43,458
PREARERSEZYERES Net book value of plant and machinery and
REMRBRZ 2 EHEE telecommunications networks held under
finance leases 1,021 1,978
SEUKEEEIRNEESY The Group leases equipment to customers on
FEF-FHSBEM 2 EEEE operating leases terms. The net book value of
CERERE BBERER such equipment, which is included in plant and
BER BHFIOT: machinery and telecommunications networks,
is as follows:
EERM (ERFTE) Customer equipment at cost 112,917 99,035
W REE Less: Accumulated depreciation 100,729 80,893
REEE Net book value 12,188 18,142

EEER-_FEE=FNAZ1THEETF
59,524,000 (R — &
8,952,000 7T) 2 & T REFEIE
BYPRIT EATEEREGZRITHE
ZHER-

44

At 30 June 2003, certain land and buildings of the Group with a net book
value of HK$9,524,000 (2002: HK$8,952,000) were pledged to a bank as
security for banking facilities granted to the Group.




13, REREH

13. SYSTEMS AND NETWORKS

THE GROUP
FEH
2003 2002
—B¥=x ZRE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
BEEE COSsT
FE1 At beginning of the year 808,676 670,717
RE Additions 212,552 73,644
ReRy Transferred from deposits 409,293 259,253
BAEHIESR Transferred to telecommunications projects - (191,413)
g Write-off - (3,525)
Fi At end of the year 1,430,521 808,676
g AMORTISATION
F¥) At beginning of the year 39,641 1,531
TEERE Provided for the year 128,015 39,520
piE k(o Eliminated on write-off - (1,410)
F5 At end of the year 167,656 39,641
AR W NET BOOK VALUE
FiE At end of the year 1,262,865 769,035
BRPZEARBBZ Net book value of systems and networks
FREFE under development 538,641 427,990

FREBHEEERUIHEETBERS
RENBEARRBBZFEERERE
FEMzEZRRBBZERNRE aFS
BREOBEFZEHEEBNESZRA

FETLEH-

Systems and networks include all direct costs incurred in the setting up and
development of internet based knowledge systems and networks. The
Group's systems and networks are amortised over the estimated economic
useful lives of the projects from the date of commencement of commercial
operations subject to a maximum of five years.
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4. WOas2RA

G4, INVESTIMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

Z45

2003 2002
—¥E=E oS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET F#ERT

REE ETRBG Listed shares in Hong Kong
— R AE - at cost 98,949 98,949

JEETRRM Unlisted shares

—~REEE - at carrying value 107,947 107,947
— R AE — at cost 10 10
RMBRRIZIRE investments in subsidiaries 206,906 206,906
EmRpzEE Market value of listed shares 90,312 99,534

FELMBROZEEEND AT EHR
EHBLARAREERRERZHEL
AZEREERERREE.

RRBEETERBRRIR-_TTE=ERX
R=+82FRariiEa -

15, BFIUEEE2EE

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book values of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries at the time they became members

of the Group under the group reorganisation.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2003 are set out

in note 41.

15. INTEREST IN Z-COWMMERCE PROJECTS

THE GROUP
FHN
2003 2002
—¥R=F —EBF
HKS$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
EFREBEREBZFLTRE: Unlisted investments in e-commerce projects:
—REOER - with guaranteed return 334,505 -
- Efb - others 55,994 631,036
390,499 631,036

FEEDHEE=FITUBHR URER
ETHESRAB -HEBRZENBE
20 BB AEBERESRLSHES
ZWMAERZBEE S LS IRe
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The Group has entered into agreements with third parties to invest in
e-commerce projects. These agreements have contract terms of 20 years
over which the Group has the right to receive distributions based on an

agreed percentage of the net revenue of each of these projects.




15. TFEBHEEZEE -4

15. INTEREST IN E-COMMERCE PROJECTS - Continued

(a) RBLER (a) With guaranteed return
THE GROUP
XM
2003 2002
—eg=% —RBE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
ELETERE EBERE Unlisted investments, at cost 426,166 -
EHRAEESR Impairment losses recognised {(91,661) -
334,505 -

REFEREN ZEBHERERE
{E#7426,166,000E T2 ETEF
HEAE ZBREETLRREAR
RoF ERER AREDESL
SRELROBIZETRAE S
BEEERE R A£EHEY
HUBEESH BETORKEA
SIERHZRERSES(RET
BEABZRELRASEHBHEN
B -BRBAERRABERE R
O FEeHLNIFHRNAE
HEDERE -

ER XAAFREEREEBRITS
R YEERREEZHHEE
REXKE BUEHNETHER
BrHRERE-ZEERETH
BEB I RAREREER
91,661,000 (ZTE_&F:
&) WS ERAZATFEENSE
BB AmMERRERE-.
FERS FREEAZIEREER
PHEHRAEEREE

During the year, the Group assigned the interest in certain e-commerce
projects with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$426,166,000 to various investment holding companies and in return
obtained equity interests in these investment holding companies.
Under the term of the sale and purchase agreements, the Group is
contracted to receive pre-determined sums of not less than the original
beneficial interest of the revenue sharing arrangement as stated in the
original revenue sharing agreements for the e-commerce projects. The
pre-determined sums will be received for a period of 5 years by half-
yearly instalments as a return on the investments in accordance with
the Group's sale and purchase agreements.

During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amount of the interest in e-commerce projects in light of the current
market condition with reference to the financial results and business
operated by the investees. The directors identified impairment losses of
HK$91,661,000 (2002: nil) on the interest in e-commerce projects,
estimated by reference to the fair value of the investments, and the
amount has been recognised in the income statement accordingly. in
the opinion of the directors, the underlying values of the above
investments are at least equal to their carrying values.
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BE_RE=FRAZTHLEE

15 BYEEEEZEE -4 15. INTEREST I E-COMMERCE PROJECTS - Continued
(b) R {b) Others
THE GROUP
FEE
2003 2002
—B2¥=s —EE=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
5.3 COSsT
£ At beginning of the year 884,353 820,144
BEEBD Transferred from deposits - 166,315
BAREBRERDRZ Transferred to interest in e-commerce projects
EFHBEREER with guaranteed return (821,772) -
HeE Disposals {6,587) (102,106}
FiE At end of the year 55,994 884,353
1] AMORTISATION
3] At beginning of the year 253,317 112,570
AEFEE Provided for the year 142,289 170,778
RERARBRELHRZ Eliminated upon transfer to interest in e-commerce
EFERAGEREEN projects with guaranteed return (395,606) -
B R 8N Eliminated on disposals - (30,031)
i At end of the year - 253,317
RRE B {E NET BOOK VALUE 55,994 631,036
REFER FEENERE During the year, the group disposed of the interest in certain e-commerce

40,310,000 TRBILEZE L
EHW4AIEE 6,587,000t

STETHREE 2 i
16. BREE 2184

16. INTEREST IN TELECQWMIMIUNICATIONS PRQJIECTS

projects with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,587,000 to an
independent third party for a total consideration of HK$40,310,000.

THE GROUP
FEE
2003 2002
bt 3 - —RECE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
BHRIBEEZE-TRE: Unlisted investments in telecommunications projects:
—RELOR ~ with guaranteed return 360,202 -
—Ef ~ others - 483,214
360,202 483,214
FEBEHE-ETIRE ARER The Group has entered into agreements with third parties to invest in
EEANMEZERRE - UEHREL telecommunications projects outside Hong Kong. These agreements have
EHERSEIE HE AEEFER contract terms of 5 to 13 years over which the Group has the right to

LR BRFHARNRELHENZHERS

b (EFEARH B TA 5 WA IR

receive distributions based on an agreed percentage of the operating

profit which varies from project to project during the lives of the above

agreements.




16. B REBZEE @

96. INTEREST IN TELECOMMURNICATIQNS PROJECTS -~ Continued

(a) REERH (a) With guaranteed return
THE GROUP
E3 1|
2003 2002
k. -2 - et o o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT FHET
FELMR/E BRE Unlisted investments, at cost 395,176 -
BRI BERSE Impairment losses recognised (34,974) -
360,202 -

REFER FEWREARGERERE
H#9395,176,0004 T2 BRIER
CHRHETEREEERAA
RO FEFEEGLSHEE
BROBZETHREAERX-REE
BEREZBR FAEEE LHKRR
EEEH BETLORBEASER
BrREEHER(AEMEEZ
REBASIEHHETR) -BiESE
BrEEGS (FROR BT &H
BNMESEFHEAREXES KR
Eye

FRN AAREBCABETTS
BR-USEWEEEUBEE
REKEE FUERMEMEEZ
BRCEEE-BEEREAEEZ
HRBTHERE34,974,000/8
T(ZBE_&:8) HHeERE
ZAFEEWMG HUHEECHE
MERRBER -BERA LR
BAZEBEARLEERERE
@e

During the year, the Group assigned the interest in
telecommunications projects with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$395,176,000 to various investment holding
companies and in return obtained equity interests in these investment
holding companies. Under the term of the sale and purchase
agreements, the Group is contracted to receive pre-determined sums of
not less than the original beneficial interest of the revenue sharing
arrangement as stated in the original revenue sharing agreements for
the telecommunications projects. The pre-determined sums will be
received for a period of 4 to 5 years by half-yearly instalments as a
return on the investments in accordance with the Group’s sale and
purchase agreements.

During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amount of the interest in telecommunications projects in light of the
current market condition with reference to the financial results and
business operated by the investees. The directors identified impairment
losses of HK$34,974,000 (2002: nil) on the interest in
telecommunications projects, estimated by reference to the fair value
of the investments, and the amount has been recognised in the income
statement accordingly. In the opinion of the directors, the underlying
values of the above investments are at least equal to their carrying
values.
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HE-_FTE=FXA=ZALFE

16. BREEZEE -4
(b) Hith

16. INTEREST (N TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROJECTS - Continued

(b) Others
THE GROUP
FEE
2003 2002
—gT=£ —EECF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0% 3 COST
F£4) At beginning of the year 1,033,305 756,293
~E Additions - 70,363
ES S E T ] Transferred from systems and networks - 191,413
Eegy Transferred from deposits - 15,500
BARERBQERZEHR Transferred to telecommunications projects
BE R with guaranteed return {999,674) -
ERERD Withdrawal from the investment (33,631) -
W Write-off - (264)
FH At end of the vear - 1,033,305
e AMORTISATION
=) At beginning of the year 550,091 446,680
REERE Provided for the year 54,407 103,411
REAREREOH Eliminated upon transfer to interest in
EEE R REY telecommunications projects with
guaranteed return (604,498) -
Fig At end of the year - 550,091
RRER{E NET BOOK VALUE - 483,214




17. BHES

17. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investment Other
securities investment Total
#EES R B
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
—R¥=F C-ZTE-F IZBY=F _"IZTF-F ZBE=HE _—FBE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHIT FERL FHET FET FET
3 3. THE GROUP
LR ES Unlisted equity
securities 194,633 126,958 - 2 194,633 126,960
RERENIFTZ Carrying value of
BHIEBREE: investments in
securities analysed
for reporting
purposes as:
Pk Current - - - 2 - 2
ERED Non-current 194,633 126,958 - - 194,633 126,958
194,633 126,958 - 2 194,633 126,960
AT THE COMPANY
ELTRAES Unlisted equity
securities 186,960 118,560 - - 186,960 118,560
AERENIR Carrying value of
ERBESFRE investments in
BEE securities analysed
for reporting
purposes as
non-current 186,960 118,560 - ~ 186,960 118,560
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For the year ended 30 June 2003
BE-BEB=-FESAZTHLEE

18. REIB AT Z2ES

18. INTEREST [N AN ASSOCIATE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEE EATF

2003 2002 2003 2002

—®¥T=x BT F —BE=s ZEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FET FHET
FEEWRG BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost - - 284,000 284,000
EEEERE Share of net assets - - - -
~ - 284,000 284,000
FEULESR & DB RUE Amount due from an associate 46,500 46,500 46,500 46,500
46,500 46,500 330,500 330,500

BRBECEFARELT 2ERE

BEEFH-EXRL AFRETER

EEREN—FRER-Bi ZBHE
FINFERBRE-

R-FEZEAASTR AEE2H
ERABENT:

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and has no
fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, the amount will not
be repaid within one year from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
amount is shown as a non-current asset.

Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2003 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital directly
Name of company incorporation held by the Company Principal activities
FATEHERT
2858 EM AL E ZERITHRATELS TEEH
Project Technology Limited British Virgin Islands 40% Provision of e-commerce
EE#BRES services
REBTHERY
19, &g 19. DEPOSITS
ERUATHRRNZRESE: Deposits were paid in connection with projects relating to the following:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FHEE F 48
2003 2002 2003 2002
—2%=F —ER- ZBe=f —ER-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET TET FHET
R RBE Systems and networks 279,240 409,293 - -
BIIEE Telecommunications projects 117,000 - 117,000 -
ORI Internet operations - 130,800 - 111,425
396,240 540,093 117,000 111,425




20. INVENTORIES

21.

THE GROUP
FEE
2003 2002
—BR=%5 TEBRC-E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
EER Raw materials 17,041 27,337
ERE Work in progress 4,739 3,930
8RS Finished goods 13,434 18,469
35,214 49,736
RELAESH Stated at cost 32,651 46,545
BIBBENS Stated at net realisable value 2,563 3,191
35,214 49,736
BB REGESR 21, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

R-BE=ZFXRAZ+R BUESR
HBER 25T 215634,098,0004
T(=BE-49:314,494,00087%) 2
FEREBZER FUREBESRFINBESH
HZERIFOT:

At 30 June 2003, the balance of trade and other receivables included trade
receivables of HK$634,098,000 (2002: HK$314,494,000). The aged analysis
of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

THE GROUP
FHE

2003 2002
—B®=s ZRE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
0—608 0 - 60 days 278,958 258,668
61—908 61— 90 days 79,454 31,308
91— 1808 91 - 180 days 246,056 11,414
>1808 > 180 days 29,630 13,104
634,098 314,494

FEARTABIESEFEERRE
REEEEFR RERERZUE 1T
NRBRTSERTLE TI0E18082
EEH-

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its trade
customers dependent on their credit worthiness, nature of services and
products, industry practice and condition of the market with credit period
ranging from 30 to 180 days.
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22

23.

24.

. BER - BITEERES 22. DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES ARND CASH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
XEE F /]

2003 2002 2003 2002
—B®=x —EE-F —8%=x —ERE_F
HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET FET
BMEFR Interest bearing deposits 559,896 586,073 - 37,304
BITEFTRAS Bank balances and cash 13,246 39,928 2,968 9,155
573,142 626,001 2,968 46,459

ENEBRAGRR 23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES

AZEE=FXA=TRHR EFESR

HaER 2 &P E1513,063,000/E 7T
(Z2T-%:21,237,000E7T) 2 FENT
E5BRR BENESRRNBELAY
BRI

At 30 June 2003, the balance of trade and other payables included trade
payables of HK$13,063,000 (2002: HK$21,237,000). The aged analysis of
trade payables at the reporting date is as follows:

THE GROUP
XEE
2003 2002
k. 3 8 3 —FE=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
0—608 0 - 60 days 2,994 13,934
61—90E 61 - 90 days 3,996 2,576
91—180H 91 - 180 days 3,406 3,754
>180H > 180 days 2,667 973
13,063 21,237
BRIOHEE 24, WARRANTY PROVISION
THE GROUP
k-4
2003 2002
—BB=f —EE—-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
F¥ At beginning of the year 1,959 1,669
EHAEE Currency realignment 244 217
FERNERR Provided during the year 2,318 3,588
FREHA Utilised during the year (2,463) (3,515)
FEiE At end of the year 2,058 1,959

FRERBEEREZNBEEREER
HEBREERZEBRHE REREK
RETCRBARESHEAEERE
e 2 REFE-

The warranty provision represents the management’s best estimate of the
Group’s liability under 12 month warranties granted on manufactured
products, based on prior experience and industry average for defective

products.




25, RITED

. BANK BORROWINGS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
HRE 4T
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BB=F ZEBE=F —B¥=£ BT -f
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEL THET FET
RITEHERFELTEE: Bank borrowings comprise the
following:
BITER Bank loans 261,991 160,000 160,000 160,000
ERWBRREQER Trust receipts and import loans 141,846 133,735 - -
MITER Bank overdrafts 83,197 135,627 - -
RBEX Mortgage loan 3,257 3,463 - -
490,291 432,825 160,000 160,000

BERAEED &R BRITEE
3,411,000 (828 _&:
11,052,000 L) ' CEAKEUER
BERI, 5240008 T (BT
8,952,000/ 7T) 2 4 RIEF{EE R

Included in the Group's balance above were bank borrowings of
HK$3,411,000 (2002: HK$11,052,000), which were secured by the Group’s
land and buildings with a net book value of HK$9,524,000 (2002:
HK$8,952,000).

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FRE FAOT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BR=s ZEE=F ~BB=f —ERCHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET FHER TRET
BROATBMNEREZ Bank borrowings bear interest at
RITEEZIBRE prevailing market rates and
mE: are repayable as follows:
RBHAE—FR On demand or within one year 322,384 323,164 - 53,333
—EREA Between one to two years 165,757 107,162 160,000 106,667
MERFEA Between two to five years 1,911 1,664 - -
RAFE Qver five years 239 835 - -
490,291 432,825 160,000 160,000
BR—FRNEEPEWEIIE  Less: Amount due within one year
RBREZEE under current liabilities (322,384) (323,164) - (53,333)
—FRIBAzEH Amount due after one year 167,907 109,661 160,000 106,667

RZBE=F=ZR=+—8 K287
T—BHBEUARETFER_BE_FR
BRIEERMEZ BBRBEZEEETT
ERETE-REERERR RERE
EREMENAZTBLEEERHY
%wso 000,000 TRENR_ZEZEMN
EXAZTREEE-EL HER LR
BEEME - £%160,000,0008 T2
EREFAR—GEREEBTRIE.

On 31 March 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to refinance
certain borrowings which were drawn down in 2002 and repayable over a
period of two years. Under the refinancing agreement, the loans of
HK$160 million originally due in the year ending 30 June 2004 will now be
repayable after 30 June 2004. As a result, for the purpose of presentation
in the repayment schedule set out above, the loans of HK$160 million were
included in the amount due after one year.
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HE_TEZFA AZTHLFE

26.

27.

HeEsE 26. OTHER BORROWINGS
THE GROUP
FHE
2003 2002
—g®=x —ET=HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEX FHET
HEHBREEARTHER The other borrowings represent block discounting
HEREPT: loans and are payable as follows:
—FA Within one year 8,191 11,481
—ZEZWEA Between one to two years 6,893 9,375
MERAFA Between two to five years 6,459 8,604
RAFIE Over five years 253 595
21,796 30,055
W FERNABEISIE Less: Amount due within one year shown under
RBEEBEZNA current liabilities (8,191) (11,481)
—FREEZRIE Amount due after one year 13,605 18,574
REERE 27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
THE GROUP
HHE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
HEREARE HARRMNREZRERHEE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—g%=x —TE=-F —BE=F —EE=
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FHET FHET
BREMRERSENATHERE Amount payable under
Bz &E: finance leases:
—FR Within one year 623 1,098 519 3908
—ERFER Between one to two years 222 679 189 567
MERFERA Between two to five years 148 198 145 192
993 1,975 853 1,667
BRMEER Less: Finance charges (140) (308) - -
HEABRREERE Present value of lease obligations 853 1,667 853 1,667
B —FREALIE Less: Amount due within one year
nEaEzes shown under current liabilities (519) (908)
—FEINBEE Amount due after one year 334 759




27.

28.

BERURED-&
AEHCURHERE UBAEST
BE BEREARE REREFSH
ZEERERE MERFHEERS
INME(ZEE-F9.34F) -FIRER
SNBSS -ES N EETRRESE
B BEXEmERRBS AT AR
Tk

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINARCE LEASES - Continued

The Group entered into finance leases to acquire certain of its plant and
machinery and telecommunications networks. The term of the finance
leases ranged from 3 to 5 years and the average effective borrowing rate
was 9.11% (2002: 9.34%). Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The
leases were on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement had been
entered into for contingent rental payments.

EEcY:aRe 28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY

ZREREANT
2003 2002
—eT=sF —BE-F
Us$’'000 Us$'000
FER FET
FEYEH Balance at beginning of the year 8,000 -
FRERTZI1SERRRES 1.5% convertible bonds issued during the year - 8,000
FERHEB Converted during the year (2,500) -
FEEES Balance at end of the year 5,500 8,000
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FER
MHBERTER Amount shown in the financial statements 42,888 62,386

R-BE-FRAZ+=-8 K27
RRBREQMETR 2R 55
RS BES E24,000,000ET21.5
EAaikEs ((RRES]) 280
EZE([BHEBBADITIBE (R
BipEl) TaREBHZ2FEEFNOT:

() HMARBEASHTARMESTE
EBHEBEAZEE aUARES
HTEBE_BREAFAAR-T—
B(FTaREs2 S —E28)
HEATEARE ZREREHR
EELBEAEgoEEEEER
ZERTHKRTEZ125%ZER
(3@ (TExindl) =
ZEARIDRBESBEAZITE
BAMEEELEBHM E5
BEARERZEARESRED
EFOH794% 2 BR([(2HH
BE]) 2B/ RBAELQT
EREEONET 2R HEEE
RERIHEAERELTEER
ADFRPDzEE-

(b) mIARESDEEMBISEFE.
MABDNREBFRARTZAGE
ExREX T

On 22 May 2002, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
“Bondholder”) for the subscription of an aggregate principal amount of up
to US$24,000,000 1.5% convertible bonds due 2005 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) issued by the Company. The principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds are as follows:

(a) The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds may be
converted at the option of the Bondholders in whole or in part into
shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company at any time from date of issue
of the Convertible Bonds to 21 May 2005, which is one week prior to
the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds, at a price equal to either
125% of the average of the closing prices per share for the 30
consecutive business days immediately prior to the date of conversion,
subject to adjustment (the “Fixed Conversion Price”) or 94% of the
average of any five closing price per share as selected by the
Bondholder during the 30 consecutive business days immediately prior
to the date on which notice of exercise of the bondholder is received
by the Company (the “Floating Conversion Price”), provided that both
the Fixed Conversion Price and the Floating Conversion Price shall not
be less than the par value of the Company’s shares.

(b) The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per annum and
interest will be payable semi-annually in arrears in June and December
in each year.
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BEZBRIFAASTRHLEFE

28.

28.

FEng -

(© BETRBEFEDRENER
BRBAREY TATHRBES
REERTEESRAS.

ERABHAL B ARFFER
TEHHAARRN UERRBESRK
23635 LR S £4,949,905 KA
alRRfm -

BERERR BFRFEAEEEXRRE
RARFE T HMATEITESN8,000,000
EZABBREF MARRFTCESR
FIEBE IRETERABRTRE
REHFEARELRS BT AS,000,000
ERZAERESF ((EHFHE]) -

REEZET-_FXA=ZTBELEE:
FARABEBTITHSAISLEE
8,000,000 T 2 Al AR EH - AFE
R+2,500,000F 7T 7 BB ITa] RR{ES
ERERNTF0.921257TE1.02463%
TS EE S IBANRAE20,379,317
BEKREE. BT MR-

28, CONVERTIBLE BONDS - Continued

(c) Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
Convertible Bond will be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount at
maturity.

As part of the Subscription Agreement, the Company also granted to the
Bondholder the right to subscribe for up to 4,949,905 shares in the
Company at a subscription price of HK$2.3635 per share.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Bondholder has an option to
require the Company to issue additional Convertible Bonds of U$$8,000,000
within a defined period and the Company was also granted an option to
issue and require the Bondholder to subscribe an aggregate principal
amount of Convertible Bonds of US$8,000,000 within a defined period (the
“Bonds Option”).

During the year ended 30 June 2002, the Company issued part of the
Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of US$8,000,000.
During the current year, U$$2,500,000 of the issued Convertible Bonds
were converted into 20,379,317 shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company at a
price ranged from HK$0.9212 to HK$1.0246 per share.

RERIE 29. DEFERRED TAXATION
THE GROUP
31|
2003 2002
—BEe=H —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FER
EER Balance at beginning of the year 40 37
BT Currency realignment 2 -
AEFEEE (HE9) Movement for the year (note 9) 148 3
FEER Balance at end of the year 190 40

FRAZEPDEEARBHAER 2 HE
SHBRMBERENFTEXHIERM
ARG E-

REEE REHRBEDERRBHT 2
BeABELNBERMBRBEAZTE
XHZBERRZUEEE S

HR-BEZFXAZ+B XEEERK
RRDEABEZRERBEREFE
#1548,662, 0008 (2T _F:
49,804,0005%T) &7,562,000/8 7% (=
BE-E:7,996,000T) TEEBE
FHRBEAHRZEBEHNESAER
HHERERARZAELEHERER
RIEETHEQRZREBEREZH
E-mRAEBTEEZzZAXBEANSR
RREE HEBENBERSARERE
ERIEEEFE-

REANNBED FRFNLEEMR
BEZEREESR-

The movement for the year comprises the taxation effect of the difference
between depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes and
depreciation charged in the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, deferred taxation represents the taxation effect
of the excess of depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes over
depreciation charged in the financial statements.

At 30 June 2003, the Group and the Company had net unprovided tax asset
of HK$48,662,000 (2002: HK$49,804,000) and HK$7,562,000 (2002:
HK$7,996,000) respectively relating primarily to the timing differences of
the excess of accounting depreciation charged in the financial statements
over depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes and taxation losses
of the Company and certain subsidiaries. The net deferred tax asset has not
been recognised in the financial statements as it is not certain that the
benefit will be realised in the foreseeable future.

There was no other significant unprovided deferred taxation for the
Company during the year or at the balance sheet date.




30. &%

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Number
of shares Amount
BHNE it
HK$’'000
FHER
SREMRIAEBRLZEERS: Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each:

ABE-FLA-A2ER Balance at 1 July 2001 12,000,000,000 1,200,000
AR A2 Increase in share capital 18,000,000,000 1,800,000
RoBB-F£/BA=+8BR

—BB=FXAZ=+B2Z&8 Balance at 30 June 2002 and 30 June 2003 30,000,000,000 3,000,000
BREHAETZ Issued and fully paid share capital

ERITRARRS: of HK$0.1 each:
RZBE-FE+-R—-RAZES Balance at 1 July 2001 5,933,468,857 593,347
MITE R EREMBITRE Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants 1,000,950,749 100,095
BB R =ERRESE

TR Issue of shares upon exercise of 2003 Warrants 208,928 21
BAT AR B m B ITRR D Issue of shares upon bonus issue 6,095,846,970 609,585
BITRIUERBARSERE Issue of shares as consideration to acquire

ZRE an investment in securities 1,185,600,000 118,560
BITROUAREZRE—F

REARLE Issue of shares as 2001 final scrip dividends 13,124,811 1,312
Bina bt Consolidation of shares {(13,660,032,192) -
Bl AR AR Capital reduction - (1,366,003)
BIRBURE_RE -8

RERR R Issue of shares as 2002 interim scrip dividends 616,761 61
RIBEZESAZTHER

ZEBEC-FA-H2ZEHR Balance at 30 June 2002 and 1 July 2002 569,784,884 56,978
HRraRBEsmaaRro Issue of shares upon conversion of Convertible Bonds 20,379,317 2,038
BEOE_ZR=-ERREE

mEITAD tssue of shares upon exercise of 2003 Warrants 5,784 -
RITE-_SEMOERRER

TR Issue of shares upon exercise of 2004 Warrants 4,335,649 434
BITIRDAERBAZSERE Issue of shares as consideration to acquire

Z2RE an investment in securities 57,000,000 5,700
BIEROURE BB &

RER R Issue of shares as 2002 final scrip dividends 6,795,221 680
BITROURE BT

FHEARR B Issue of shares as 2003 interim scrip dividends 5,999,496 600
R-BBV|=5X<B=+HB2ER Balance at 30 June 2003 664,300,351 66,430
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SRR =FRAZTTEIEEE

30. R -E 30. SHARE CAPRITAL — Continued

60

RAREE HAATZERAEUTED:

(a) £RBH2,500,0005T22%
THBRBRESFEREERNT
0.9212/BLE1.0246 BT T E 2
B H#2520,379,3178 K2 7
BREENIETZIRG:

(b) ER HHNRREBEEATER
RAZ-_EZZERWREAER-F
THERREE (ERR TR
frREsE] —&F) U5, 784 R
4,335, 649REREEONETL
RIS EDRIIRESR2.95FB TR TR
116158 5L 2 B T LATT:

() BREXRLCAB—ZBELE=F
E-Giga Technology Limited
([E-Gigal YR -_BE-_&E+—#
ZHNBEuzmE ([&iHED -
ARARYWEBHMRE-Gigalt B
4G Inc. B HEITREZ15% B8
BE4GT Inc. 15%EE2HRER
68,400,000 7T WAA R GRS
AR1.27%8 7L 2 (B8 % 1757,000,000
BEREEHLUBTLZRNIE

(d) RZZET=F—F SREEEHK
BAABBRMURER 2T
+Z AT/ RAETRE Z ARR BET
BTZ2_SE_EXRERAE
6,795,221 EREBEIETLZ
AR ERE1.065 8T 2 EE T
BT R

(e) RZBE=ZFXA HREFEBEEW
BRELGRGURER-EE=F
AARAZHEAHZ AR EEET
Z_EE=-FHhHERBEE -
5,999,496 R BRREE01ETZ
BMERER0.982ETZERT
LAZELT e

MEBHMBI2BOESSERE
BHAZERITRNDZERAFES

PRESR

R-BE-E+-RANB -XRaE
EEBRFERELCMZRER ([ZTE=
ERRER]) BERSSREREE
0.10BTZBRAIEBRE-—H_TE=F
RREE-AN ARICBTAH
2,843,173, 3157 RREE  EFRMAT
RS ES 335,494,451 BT 2 AR
ARG ZEN - FHAREEYEES
BEEAUEEROVISETZMHRE
B(]PAE) BEEM-R_FTTZ
FAGHBRMDE RBEDHEEZ2.95
BT -RAREECER_TT=F—A
AEER

During the year, the following changes in the share capital of the Company
took place:

(a) During the year, US$2,500,000 of the issued Convertible Bonds were
converted into 20,379,317 shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company at a
price ranged from HK$0.9212 to HK$1.0246 per share;

(b) During the year, 5,784 shares and 4,335,649 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at HK$2.95 and HK$1.1615 per share respectively as a
result of the exercise of 2003 Warrants and 2004 Warrants (as defined
under the section headed “Warrants” below) of the Company by the
warrant holders;

(c) Pursuant to an agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 28 November 2002
entered into between the Company and E-Giga Technology Limited
("E-Giga"), an independent third party, the Company acquired from
E-Giga a 15% interest in the issued share capital of 4G1 inc. at the date
of acquisition. The total consideration for the acquisition of the 15%
interest in 4G1 Inc. was HK$68,400,000, which was satisfied by the
Company’s issue of 57,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of
HK$1.2 per share;

(d) InJanuary 2003, 6,795,221 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price
of HK$1.06 per share upon election by shareholders to receive shares in
the Company in lieu of the 2002 fina! dividend pursuant to the scrip
dividend scheme as announced on 18 December 2002; and

(e) InJune 2003, 5,999,496 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HK$0.982 per share upon election by shareholders to receive shares in
the Company in lieu of the 2003 interim dividend pursuant to the scrip
dividend scheme as announced on 2 May 2003.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all
respects.

Warrants

On 6 December 2001, the Company approved a bonus issue of warrants
(“2003 Warrants”) to its shareholders on the basis of one unit of 2003
Warrant for every 5 shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company. A total of
2,843,173,315 units of warrants, conferring rights to subscribe up to
HK$335,494,451 in aggregate for the Company’s shares, were therefore
issued. Each warrant entitled the holder thereof to subscribe in cash at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.118 per share, subject to adjustments.
Following the consolidation of shares in May 2002, the subscription price
was adjusted to HK$2.95. The warrants expired on 6 January 2003.




30. B —&

31.

e A R
RZBFE-E+-A+—RB Fp8E
BRRECHBHRIBRELZR/ZAQT
BREZITHATZREE ([ ZFEOF
RAEE]) LUREEENR-ET=F
TZAZ+HE (/&%) SREE
0NETLZEBITRHDEE20% 2K
F#HECredit Suisse First Boston
(Hong Kong) Limited &R iR 4% B 41
TEEMBEIRER2.36358T 2 E
HBRES 4,949,905 1 2 R1THE
REHEZBERT HE4,949,90508A%
B RBR_BET=E—-A+BRBZ
EEREBE ARETTANRERE
121,168,814 — BB ERRRE
RERFLEREEOAAELZRG
2L REEERIAISETRITTAE
DERRE-
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30. SHARE CAPITAL ~ Continued

31.

Warrants — Continued

On 11 December 2002, the Company proposed a bonus issue of new
warrants (2004 Warrants”) to subscribe for shares equal to 20% of the
issued number of shares of HK$0.1 each on 30 December 2002 (the “Record
Date”), less 4,949,905 shares if the outstanding subscription right granted
to Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited to subscribe for a total of
4,949,905 shares at HK$2.3635 per share were not exercised by the Record
Date, to the shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on the
register of members on the Record Date. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed on 7 January 2003, 121,168,814 units of 2004 Warrants were issued
to the shareholders of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$1.1615 per share of HK$0.1 each of the Company as a result of the
bonus issue of new warrants,

During the year, 2003 Warrants and 2004 Warrants carrying subscription
rights of HK$17,063 and HK$5,035,856 respectively were issued.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company, Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), a 57% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a 78% owned
subsidiary of the Company, each has share option schemes under which
eligible persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone,
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM or any of their subsidiaries, may be granted
options to subscribe for shares in the Company, Kantone and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 July 1992, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“0Old Champion Option Scheme™”) which enabled the directors of the
Company to grant options to directors and employees, for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to their employees, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Under the Old Champion Option Scheme, the
share options granted by the Company were exercisable at any time for
a period as it may be determined by its directors. Options granted were
exercisable within ten years from the date of grants, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer. The subscription price of the option shares was the higher of the
nominal value of the shares and an amount which was 80% of the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options. Options
granted under the Old Champion Option Scheme prior to its cessation
which had not been fully exercised remained valid until such time that
such options were fully exercised or has lapsed. The Old Champion
Option Scheme expired on 29 july 2002.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEWIES - Continued
(i) The Company - Continued
A summary of the movements of share options granted by the
Company to the directors and employees of the Company under the
Old Champion Option Scheme during the year is as follows:

Share options

g

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding

Exercise at during at

Name of director Exercisable period price 1.7.2002 the year 30.6.2003

R-B®-E R-BR=F

tB—-B ~BA=+8

ESEM T TR CEXvatd REAXY 1 RITHE

HK$
#EXx

Leo Kan Kin Leung 8.2.2000 to 7.2.2003 5.82 80,000 (80,000) -
HER —EEFF-_RBNBZE
TE=E=-A+A

Lai Yat Kwong 8.2.2000 to 7.2.2003 5.82 80,000 (80,000) -
BaX ZEETE-ANRE
—EE=F-/R+H

160,000 (160,000) -

Employees 8.2.2000 to 7.2.2003 5.82 5.040,000 (5,040,000) -
8T ZETEFE_ANBE
ZEE=F-A+H

5,200,000 (5,200,000) -

RZFEZF+—~AZ+AB &ZQF
Eo—mEaaRgse((FRERmE
HEL) O UBAMTHER ETAL
(TETRBD 2R -FTEEERE
Bl EMERESIRBBEZEABRE

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the "New Champion Option Scheme”) in order to comply with
the terms of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The purpose of the New Champion
Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and other
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persons and to provide them with incentive to contribute to the
business and operation of the Company. Under the New Champion
Option Scheme, the directors may grant options to any directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of
the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as customers and
suppliers of the Company, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
share option granted by the Company is exercisable at any time for a
period as it may be determined by its directors. Options granted are
exercisable within ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer. The subscription price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option shares under the New Champion Option Scheme
is equal to the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No share option under the New Champion
Option Scheme was granted by the Company to directors of the
Company since its adoption.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - Continued
{ii) Kantone

On 20 December 1996, Kantone adopted the share option scheme (the
"0ld Kantone Option Scheme”). No share option was granted by
Kantone under the Old Kantone Option Scheme since its adoption.

On 29 November 2002, Kantone approved the termination of the Old
Kantone Option Scheme and adopted the new share option scheme
(the “New Kantone Option Scheme”} which will expire on 28
November 2012 in order to comply with the terms of the Listing Rules.
The purpose of the New Kantone Option Scheme is to attract and to
retain quality personnel and other persons and to provide them with
incentive to contribute to the business and operation of Kantone.
Under the New Kantone Option Scheme, the directors may grant
options to any eligible persons of Kantone, including directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of
Kantone, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as customers and
suppliers of Kantone, to subscribe for shares in Kantone. Options
granted are exercisable within ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days after the date of
offer.

The subscription price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of
the option shares under the New Kantone Option Scheme is equal to
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant, which must be a business day and (iii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of which the options
may be granted under the New Kantone Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Kantone at the date of
approval of the New Kantone Option Scheme. However, the total
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of Kantone from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any one grantee in any 12 months
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without prior approval from
the Kantone's shareholders. No share option under the New Kantone
Option Scheme was granted since its adoption.
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39, SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - Continued
(iii) DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

On 27 March 2000, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM adopted a share option
scheme (the “Old DHK Option Scheme”). Under the Old DHK Option
Scheme, options granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM are exercisable
at any time during a period as it may be determined by the directors of
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, which shall be not less than three years and
not more than ten years from the date of issue of the relevant options.
The subscription price of the option shares is the higher of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price per share on the date of grant
and an amount which is the average of the closing prices of the shares
on the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options. No share option was granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
since its adoption under the Old DHK Option Scheme.

On 29 November 2002, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM approved the
termination of the Old DHK Option Scheme and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New DHK Option Scheme”) in order to comply
with the terms of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. The purpose of the
New DHK Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel
and other persons and to provide them with incentive to contribute to
the business and operation of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM. Under the
New DHK Option Scheme, the directors may grant options to any
directors, employees, consultants, advisors in respect of business,
operation, management, technology, legal, accounting and financial
matters of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as
well as customers and suppliers of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, to
subscribe for shares of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM. Options granted by
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM are exercisable at any time within ten years
from the date of grant. The subscription price of the option shares is
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant and (iii) the average closing price of
the shares on the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No share option under the New DHK Option Scheme was
granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM since its adoption.




32. fidE 32. RESERVES

Capital Accu-

Share  Dividend redemption  General Capital  Goodwill ~ Merger Translation  mulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ROHA RAEE HRXBREEA -REfE HXGE BEEE SHEE RHES RitH -1

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEL AR FEL FER FER TER TR FAR FER FEL

b3 1L THE GROUP
R-8B-£:0-8 At 1 July 2001
- REES - 35 originally stated 906,503 8,900 50 - 42,198 (396,184) 8,358 2298 1419598 1,991,7A
-BERB (R - prior period adjustment
{note 2) - - - - - - - - (3,176) (3,176)
-E - as restated 906,503 8,300 50 - A8 (%6184)  83% 2208 1416422 1,988,545

HEBSHEL 2 ES Reserve arising from

capital reduction - - - 1,366,003 - - - - - 1,366,003
BTIFERESRY Premium arising from .
FEE7ER issue of shares
-fiEaREE - on exercise of warrants 22,640 - - - - - - - - 22,640
-AEHERE - on distribution of
scrip dividends 1,019 - - - - - - - - 1,019
BEENNEEZBEAY  Exchange difference
FELZERZR arising on translation of
operations outside
Hong Kang - - - - - - - 1,458 - 1,458
FaBREEE Capitalisation of bonus issue (609,585 - - - - - - - - {60%,585)
¥-RHERE Capitalisation for a bonus issue
ZUBREER of shares of a subsidiary - - - - 63,297 - - - (63,297) -
EEREH Net profit for the year - - - - - - - - 133,040 133,040
AERRE Dividend for the year
-HEEZTRAS - underprovision in prior year - M - - - - - - (241) -
-nEHE - interim - 8,893 - - - - - - (8,893) -
-RERE - Final - 14,245 - - - - - - (14,245) -
ERERE Dividend paid - {15,642} - - - - - - - (15,642)
BIRERG Issue of shares as scrip dividends - (2,392} - - - - - - - (2,392)
HoFRERASHAR
ZBE-5t8-8 At 30 June 2002 and 1 July 2002 320,577 14,245 50 1,366,003 105,495 (396,184) 8,358 3756 1,462,786 2,885,086
BTHREMEHRE Premium arising from issue
HFEEZER of shares
-RRTRRGES - on conversion of
convertible bonds 17,460 - - - - - - - - 17,460
-fEBEARSREZ - a5 consideration to acquire
£ an investment in securities 62,700 - - - - - - - - 62,700
-fiERREE - on exercise of warrants 4618 - - - - - - - B 4,618
-AENBRRE - on distribution of
scrip dividends 11,815 - - - - - - - - 11,815
RERUNEE2EERE  Exchange difference arising on
FEE7EARE translation of operations
outside Hong Kong - - - - - - - (4,015) - {4,015)
EERHH Net profit for the year - - - - - - - - 191,247 191,247
ZEERE Dividend for the year
~IEE2ARRE - underprovision in prior year - 243 - - - - - - (243) -
-FBRE - interim - 10,089 - - - - - - {10,089) -
-RBRS - final - 17,212 - - - - - - (17.212) -
CRERE Dividend paid - {11,482) - - - - - - - (11,482)
ERERE Issue of shares as scrip dividends - {13,095) - - - - - - - (13,095)
it 2 23R - At 30 June 2003 417170 17212 50 1,366,003 105495  (396,184) 8,358 (259) 1,626,429 3,144,334
ETHARAL: Attributable to:
ERRRANELR The Company and
its subsidiaries 417,170 17,212 50 1,366,003 105,495 (396,184) 8,358 (259) 1,626,429 3,144,334
BERY An associate - - - - - - - - - -
47,170 17212 50 1,366,003 105,495 {396,184) 8,358 (259) 1626429 3144334
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32. RESERVES - Continued
The general reserve of the Company and the Group represents the reserve
arising from the reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the
Company (after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid up capital
to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the Company in 2002.

The Group's merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus
issue of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of capitalising the
subsidiary’s accumulated profits.

Capital
Share Dividend General redemption Special Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
B3 iE REER -REE  ASHEHEE HRiRE Rit#E# 1]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER THT TR FERL TER TER FER
329 THE COMPANY
RZ2%-5tA-R At 1 July 2001 906,503 8,900 - 50 107,947 92,835 1,116,235
HRRSHEE2 RE Reserve arising from capital reduction - - 1,366,003 - - - 1,366,003
EMFIRAmETRE Premium arising from issue of shares
FiEEZEE
—fIERRES - on exercise of warrants 22,640 - - - - - 22,640
-UERKS - on distribution of scrip dividends 1,019 - - - - - 1,019
BARBEES Capitalisation for bonus issue (609,585) - - - - - (609,585)
FEEHREH Net loss for the year - - - - - (3,545) (3,545)
FEERE Dividend for the year
~LEEZTREBE - underprovision in prior years - 241 - - - (241) -
~RERS ~ interim - 8,893 - - - (8,893) -
-KERe - final - 14,245 - - - (14,245) -
BERERE Dividend paid - (15,642) - - - - (15,642)
BIIRERS Issue of shares as scrip dividends - (2,392) - - - - (2,392)
RZBg-F,A=+8
EZBF-%tA—d9  At30June 2002 and 1 July 2002 320,577 14,245 1,366,003 50 107,947 65,911 1,874,733
BTHRAMEIRS Premium arising from issue of shares
FELZER
-EEnARES - on conversion of convertible bonds 17,460 - - - - - 17,460
-EREABEREAL - as consideration to acquire
B an investment in securities 62,700 - - - - - 62,700
-1 RRIEE - on exercise of warrants 4,618 - - - - - 4,618
~ARREAE - on distribution of scrip dividends 11,815 - - - - - 11,815
BEEGH Net profit for the year - - - - - 14,294 14,294
TERERE Dividend for the year
-LEEZTREE ~ underprovision in prior years - 243 - - - (243) -
- HRE - interim - 10,089 - - - (10,089) -
-RERE - final - 17,272 - - - (17,272) -
SRBRE Dividend paid - (11,482) - - - - (11,482)
BIRARM Issue of shares as scrip dividends - (13,095) - - - - (13,095)
BR-¥B=EXA=+E At 30June 2003 417,170 17,272 1,366,003 50 107,947 52,601 1,961,043

ARARZHREBLEREAXTWE
Champion (Cook Islands) Limited
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited Z & 15 &
B 2ERRzRAEEEDEEER
LB EMBET 2R ARG EERE
Bl2=%E-

The Company’'s special reserve represents the difference between the book
values of the underlying net assets of Champion (Cook Islands) Limited and
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.
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34,

PR WA 33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
2003 2002
—g®=sx —EF-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
BHEEESEE: Net assets disposed of:
HHFIRE Investments in securities 725 -
E S REMEKRER Trade and other receivables 4,683 -
B REMEMER Trade and other payables (4,500) -
908 -
LEMBARZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (752) -
156 -
TR AR Satisfied by:
Be Cash 156 -

ER EHEMBLAAAREAZEY
BeREETEEL122,966,000%8 T
MERERBERGREZERY T8
R-RHEMBLFA MBLRAZER
CHETEMEE LR

FEFCHENBRARAARNEBZEE
W T437,839,0008 T WHRAEE
SR 4EF79,361,0008 7T ¢

ERIEREXH

(@) FRFEMEZEBYE=FTT
SEBH M ARERETEFH
BHERENRBEZEEEETS
RREERQF - BRES A
426,166,000/ 71 2395,176,0007%
T MARES BB S REERL
Bl m20% 2 R R B e

(b) EA ADFIEIGT Inc B A eh
Z15%E%{£{E8568,400,000/8
T T ARABIREGR.2ETTZE
7% %%7757,000,00082 AR E1E0.1
BRZBRG I AT

(¢) REERETHRITNHEABED
£78, 0008 T (BT -5
2,168,000 7T) 2 BEUBE
RETH-.

(d) R_ZE2E_F XLFCURE
118,560,000 L ECumbrian
Range Limited B #&{TRE19% 2
ER EERENUALIEER
0. 18T 2 EHRET1,185,600,000
BEREE BT ZIBRPBEN-.

34.

During the year, the subsidiaries disposed of contributed HK$122,966,000
to the Group’s net operating cash flows and insignificant investing and
financing cash flows. Prior to the disposal of the subsidiaries, operations of
the subsidiaries were transferred to other group companies.

The subsidiaries disposed of in the current year contributed
HK$437,839,000 to the Group's turnover and made a net profit for the year
amounting to HK$79,361,000.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group entered into various agreements with
independent third parties for the assignment of the Group’s interest in
certain e-commerce projects and telecommunications projects for a
total consideration of HK$426,166,000 and HK$395,176,000
respectively to various investment holding companies and in return
obtained equity interests of less than 20% in each of these investment
holding companies.

(b) During the year, the Company acquired a 15% interest in the share
capital of 4G1 Inc. at a consideration of HK$68,400,000 which was
satisfied by the issue of 57,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company at a price of HK$1.2 per share.

(¢) The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of assets
with a total capital value of HK$78,000 (2002: HK$2,168,000) at the
inception of the leases.

(d) In 2002, the Company acquired a 19% interest in the issued capital of
Cumbrian Range Limited at a consideration of HK$118,560,000 which
was satisfied by the issue of 1,185,600,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company at HK$0.1 per share.
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3. RERRETHZERIT 35. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2003 2002
ZBe=f —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
BER-RTEFEES Deposits, bank balances and cash 573,142 626,001
RITEX Bank overdrafts (83,197) (135,627)
489,945 490,374
36. BIARRE 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY
F48
2003 2002
—B¥=F —TBCF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHEL
ARBARE ZERE Guarantees given to banks in respect of
MERITEL 2 BR credit facilities granted to subsidiaries 195,800 175,800
FEEREEEBEEINERLRE The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at the balance
& sheet date.
37. BRE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP
ZHRE
2003 2002
—E¥¥=£ ZEE-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
ME - BERERENMES Capital expenditure in respect of property,
MBmrarET: plant and equipment and systems and networks:
BEIANEBREYRBLEHEE  Contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements 42,900 44,140
EREERITEH Authorised but not contracted for 180,306 113,822
223,206 157,962
RAFIREREEMBEMERAE- The Company did not have any capital commitments at the balance sheet

date.



38, EEHEARE 38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

ERMERKEBAA The Group as leasee
REED ZERZEEHMARNESR At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum lease payments
BERRBZTUGHELEERERE payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
RZHEESENRBEZHSHERNAT: premises and machinery and equipment which fall due as follows:
THE GROUP
FRE
2003 2002
%8z _EECE®
Machinery Machinery
Land and and Land and and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
T RiRE P2 RER R THIREF WERRRE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET FET
BLEBEERER: Operating leases which expire:
—5R Within one year 2,134 2,753 2,735 2,980
E_ZELHF In the second to fifth years
(HERMFRIEERN) inclusive 5,427 3,599 3,104 5,796
7,561 6,352 5,839 8,776
BpEmkz THREFEA— =205 Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to four years and rentals
MBESNE-—E0F 2 FHFHET- are fixed for an average term of one to four years.
REER ZRFZEEEEARADEZ At the balance sheet date, the Company had future minimum lease
TR HEEEERREN CBRERE payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
FREZIHBERMOT: rented premises which fall due as follows:
THE COMPANY
2T
2003 2002
—ee=F ZREC-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET THET
BERBER: Operating leases which expire:
—%R” Within one year 638 552
E_ZERNF (EERMEREER) In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,064 -
1,702 552
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38 EREDEEG-@

39.

FEEEALHEA
REEE FEEREERESREM
BEAEAPIIZANZIBABERN

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - Continued
The Group as lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group contracted with tenants in respect of
plant and machinery and telecommunications networks which fall due as

T follows:
2003 2002
—8T=F IEEIF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
—FR Within one year 8,489 5,439

E-EERE

(EEMERELEN) In the second to fifth years inclusive 14,825 11,583
REFE After five years 799 -
24,113 17,022

BMURAIED
FRAREREHBLR (RTEER
HMBAR ((BREE]) URMBEE
EREMBLAT ((REEBEE]) N
MW EERERREERREETEEEES
THZ5:

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries other than Kantone and
its subsidiaries (the "Kantone Group”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM and
its subsidiaries (the “"DIGITALHK Group”) had the following transactions
with the Kantone Group and the DIGITALHK Group:

2003 2002
—g%=E “EE-F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHL FET
HEEREETZXAEN Nature of transactions with the Kantone Group
WBEBRRANRAERARE Fees received for the provision of office premises
REBRE2ER and facilities, and management services 1,440 1,200
BABWEREN Purchases of pagers and equipment 47 128
HEBMEH Sales of telecommunications equipment - 214
HERSFEAEERZAFHEQELAY These transactions were carried out after negotiation between the Group

BET-BEERNANFBZEEE
E-ERMEABAELERERETER
BRUBRZERIRER—AARET
A+ HERRIUZEERE (B
R—ANNFEF+_BE—ABAR-_ZFE_F
+—BZ+ABEE)URBER-F
E-F+AC-RAEFEZHERSEY
ZEMEEREIREX e

and respective related companies. The purchases were determined on a
cost plus basis. The fees received for the provisions of office premises and
facilities, and management services were in accordance with the
management agreement entered into with Kantone dated 20 December
1996, which was renewed on 1 December 1999 and 29 November 2002 as
well as other management agreements entered into with subsidiaries of
Kantone dated 2 July 2002.



39, BMRRALRS -5

40.

RYBEEREETIXHER

ENELR FRRENWE
EWITEE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - Continued

2003 2002
—TR=s ZRRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Nature of transactions with the DIGITALHK Group
Registration fee, annual fee and technical fee paid 945 6,687
Administration fees received 960 3,000

ERRBENEEAATNEELBEA LR
ZWEMEE TS AITERES0,000%
T (ZBB-4:250,0007T) HikE
EAFEEBERIT U ER2BETR
E}(u

DXGHIRTER

R-ZBBZFAAZTRB ARET
ERFARLARFRBEABTEAER
458,000,000 T Z1.5E A B EH-
fEET A8 2 R F 40 7360,356,000/8

40.

The service fees paid were charged with reference to comparable market
prices as determined by the directors of the Company while the
administration fees were charged at a monthly fee of HK$80,000 (2002:
HK$250,000) pursuant to a management agreement entered into between
the Company and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM.

SIGNIFICANT POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 26 September 2003, the Company exercised the Bonds Option and
principal amount of US$8,000,000 1.5% Convertible Bonds was issued to
the Bondholder. The net estimated proceeds of approximately
HK$60,356,000 will be used for general working capital of the Group.

TR BEREEZ -RYEERS-

1. EEMOAE

41.

AZBE=FEXNA=TH FAREE

EMBRAIZHENT:

Name of company
AEEHE

100BESTSHOP.COM Limited

Champion (Cook Islands)
Limited*

Champion Consortium
Limited

Champion Fax Machine
Investments Limited

Champion International
Investments Limited

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2003 are as

follows:

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued
operations share capital
BRAL/EEREY ERETRIEE
Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2
ik LR - 28T

Cook Istands
EREE

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
EBRBRESS

P&

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
KBamANE/

hE

British Virgin
Islands/PRC
SERRERESE/

P

Ordinary - HK$1
BBl - 18T

Ordinary - US$1
LER-1ET

Ordinary - US$1
TER-1ET

Ordinary - US$50,000
ERR - 50,0005

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share
capital held
by the Company
FREREZBREEE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
EERE

Provision of e-shopping
and internet-based
activities

RESFEDRIBHBE

Investment holding
REZBR

Strategic investment
RRMERAE

Investment holding
BEE

Investment in
telecommunications
networks and
e-commerce projects

HECHARRETFEERA
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41, ZEROAT -4

|

Place of

incorporation/
Name of company operations
NEER M

Champion Luck
International Limited
BEEBRERAR

Hong Kong
G

Champion Million
Industries Limited
HEEERARAF

Hong Kong
EE

Champion Pacific
Investment Limited
BHEERRDE

Hong Kong
i

Champion Technology
Limited
BEMEBRAE

Hong Kong
Epes

Champnet Limited Hong Kong
HERBERRAR £y
Chief Champion Limited

Hong Kong
TZERLE B

Chinese Paging Company
Limited
FXEFERAF

Hong Kong
&

Chinese Science &

Hong Kong
Technology Limited 3

FIRRERAT
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa
EETHS
DIGITALHONGKONG. British Virgin
COM INC. Istands
EBEBRES

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM*
BEEE

Cayman Islands
HEES

72

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
ERTRFEE

Ordinary - HK$2
TER-2%8T

Ordinary - HK$2
@R - 2B

Ordinary - HK$2
@R -258R

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred - HK$1,000,000
L@k - 1,0008 7T

EIERL - 1,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary - HK$2
BB - 2B

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred - HK$10,000
TEAS - 1,000 T
FELER - 10,000/ T

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred — HK$2,000,000
EEE - 1,0008 7T

IR - 2,000,000/8 7T

Ordinary - HK$2
TER - 24T
Ordinary — US$1
ZER-1ET

Ordinary - US$1
TER-1E7T

Ordinary - HK$15,000,000
%3EAT - 15,000,000 T

47, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ~ Continued

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share
capital held
by the Company
FRERGZRFER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

78%

78%

Principal activities
TEEH

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MELRE

Property investment
MERE

Sales of general systems
products and provision
of services and software
licensing

HE—REGEQREHRR
BE AR

Internet business
EEEER

Property investment
MERE

Paging operations
BIFER

Internet business
EEBRE

Internet business
BEHBER

Provision of an
e-Commerce platform
for payment process for
global business

RERLRRHAZFHERK
BrEs

Investment holding
REER



41, ZEMOAT -8

Name of company
LEEH

Digital Commerce Limited

Digital Hong Kong Limited
BEEEERFRLE

Eagle Landmark Limited

ESP International
Group Limited
ESPEBGESEBARAT

Happy Commercial
Company Limited
EXBRAE

Happy Union Development
Limited

ERRRERAOA

Harilela Kantone

Telecommunications
Limited

High Win Limited

Hong Kong IT
Alliance Limited
ERENREREERLT

Hydro-Cable Limited

Internet Vehicles Limited
ER@NERRLT

Kannet Limited
EFRABEERLR

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ~ Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations
EMRI ERRE

Hong Kong
%

Hong Kong
EE

British Virgin
Islands
EEERRES

Hong Kong
%

Macau
AP

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
FE

British Virgin
Islands
RBARRES

Hong Kong
EB

British Virgin
Islands
KEAERES

Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong
e

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
ERTRFEE

Ordinary - HK$2
@R - 28T

Ordinary - HK$2
LR - 28T

Ordinary - US$1
TER-1ET

Ordinary - HK$2
LRk -2ET

Ordinary ~ MOP25,000
EEM - 25,0008 %

Ordinary - HK$2
ERE-28T

Ordinary - HK$10,000

&R - 10,000 T

Ordinary - US$1
LER-1ET

Ordinary - HK$2
EER-28T

Ordinary - US$1
TRER-1ERT

Ordinary - HK$2
ZER-28R

Ordinary - HK$2
BEk - 28T

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued share
capital held

by the Company
FRE/EZREESE

78%

78%

100%

100%

100%

100%

55%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
EREH

Development of
e-Commerce platform
and evaluation of
e-Commerce
opportunities

REErEETaR
FEETEHEES

Provision of
e-Commerce platform
for payment process

RUEFHENRES

Provision of treasury
services
REERRY

Advertising and
recruitment agency
BERERAERT

Provision of
documentation services
and management and
business consultant

BHYERERBR
EERBEER

Property investment

Investment in
telecommunications
activities

Investment holding

information technology
development
ERARBE

Investment holding

Provision of internet
related services
REEHEHRBRE

Internet operations
GEEES
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BE_RF=FXRAZTHLEE

4. EZEREAS &

Name of company
ATEE

Kantel Limited
AREATEFRAT

Kantone Holdings Limited*

ERRERRAAY
Kantone Paging

Company Limited
ERPNEYERAA

Kantone (UK) Limited

Kontone International
Limited
BRERFRAT

KTT (Cook Islarids)
Limited*

Linkit Industries Limited

Lucky Success Development

Limited
EXERERAT
Lucky Tone Investments
Limited
HEREFRAE

M.C. Holdings Limited

Multitone Electronics PLC

Multitone Electronics
Sdn. Bhd.

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations
HRREHBE

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands
HEHES

Hong Kong
EE

United Kingdom
HE

Hong Kong
BE

Cook Islands
BERES

British Virgin
Islands
IBRBRES

Hong Keng

Hong Kong
BE

Cayman Islands
HEES

United Kingdom
22

Malaysia
BRAES

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
ERITRFEHE

Ordinary - HK$2
@k - 28T

Ordinary -~ HK$222,096,175
ZEAR - 222,096,175 T

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred - HK$2,000,000
R - 1,0008 T

BRER - 2,000,00058 7T

Ordinary - £5,500,000
@Ak - 5,500,000 8

Ordinary - HK$2
TEMk - 2B
Ordinary ~ HK$10,000
EiERR - 10,0008 T
Ordinary — US$1

LAk - 1%

Ordinary - HK$2
TEk-28R

Ordinary - HK$2
TEl-28n

Ordinary - £5,500,002
@A - 5,500,002

Ordinary - £3,830,107
LA - 3,830,107EE

Ordinary - MR285,000
TEM - 2850005 REET

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

capital held

by the Company
FREEEZRFES

100%

57%

100%

57%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

57%

57%

57%

Principal activities
TEEY

Investment in
telecommunications
networks

Investment holding
BREER

Trading in pagers and
provision of paging
services

BHEYSRRUETRE

Investment holding
BETR

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment in systems and
networks

Property investment

MERE

Property investment
ESE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding,
design and manufacture
of telecommunications
system and equipment

BERR R REE
BHERREN

Manufacture of
telecommunications
equipment

EETHEY



Name of company
LHER

Multiton Elektronik GmbH

Multitone Rentals Limited

New Telecomm Company
Limited
HABAFRAA

Peak Vantage Limited

QQKK.COM Limited

Smart (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Ltd

#5CRABREERE)
HRAH

Top Gallop International
Limited

Very Happy International
Limited
AEBEERAA

Victory (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited

B8 CARMEERERY)
BRAA)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ~ Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations
BRALCEDE

Germany
Vi

A

United Kingdom
=B

Hong Kong
3

British Virgin
Islands/Macau
ERpBERRS AN

Hong Kong
B

Macau
Pt

British Virgin
Islands
ERRRARES

Hong Kong
%

Macau
B

Proportion of
nominal value

Nominal value of issued share

of issued capital held
share capital by the Company
BRTRFEE FEEBIEZREED
Ordinary - DM2,000,000 57%

iR - 2,000,000 %

Ordinary - £100 57%

L@ - 100548

Ordinary - HK$6,000,000 100%
LiBR - 6,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary - US$1 57%
EBR- 1%

Ordinary - HK$2 100%
HER- 28T

Ordinary - MOP100,000 57%

L@ - 100,0008F%

Ordinary - US$1 100%
TRk - 1%

Ordinary - HK$2 100%
LER - 28T

Ordinary - MOP 100,000 100%

B - 100,000:2F9%

Principal activities
EERH

Distribution of
telecommunications
equipment

EEBHEY

Leasing of system products
AGERER

Trading in
telecommunications
equipment and
provision of related
services

BHERSHRRETHRS

Provision of treasury
services
REHEERR

Provision of e-commerce,
m-commerce and
internet based activities

REBFEE RPHER
BEHERS

Provision of services,
software licensing and
trading in
telecommunications
equipment

RERS HHETE
REFEMEN

Investment holding

Property investment
MERE

Provision of services,
software licensing and
trading in
telecommunications
products

RBURE BEEHE
REEEHES
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44, ZEROLTE-& 4. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Proportion of
nominal value

Place of Nominal value of issued share
incorporation/ of issued capital held
Name of company operations share capital by the Company Principal activities

ATER dMATEERY CERTREEE FREREZRFES TEEH
Y28.COM Inc. British Virgin Ordinary - US$1 100% Provision of e-commerce,
Islands EEl - 1% m-commerce and
KBRARRES internet based activities
RHEETHE RDEEER
EMBR%
Y28.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Provision of e-commerce,
BAERRLT £ TER-287T m-commerce and

internet based activities
EHETHE RHHER

LI BRH%
Y28.Innovations Cayman Islands Ordinary - HK$0.1 100% Provision of e-commerce,
HEH#SE EEMR - 0.1%T m-commerce and
internet based activities
RESTFAHE RPBER
HERBMRG
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary - US$1 57% Investments in
Islands/Macau AR -1%7T e-Commerce projects
EESBREES R RESFHEEE
*  BERFEERE *  Directly held by the Company

HAEERE LUEWBRAZEE
BHETHEAEN:

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each of the above-
mentioned subsidiaries entitled the holders thereof to:

(2) MZSATRETA—EABREER
2 FR%100,000,000,000% 7T
B RS QrWBRRFESETE
ZERBEERBEE R

(a) a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any
financial year of the company in question in respect of which the net
profits of such company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b) ROFBEUR SERXTZLTER
BEARZBETESRRLE
100,000,000,0008 L% 54X
RZHGEETRRERSHARE
ZBRERMD WA 2 BR&K

(b) on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid up on such shares out of
the surplus assets of the company in question after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed in such winding up in respect
of each of the ordinary shares of such company.

76

ERANZERTMBRTAIDESEER
REARBARBOFAEERFEEER
BEXRREFAEE SN 2MER
A-EEEAR HMEAGCHBATZE
B—HIE RESANBRITR.

EMBARR-_FEE=ZFAA=+TAK
EARTABESEEAEEES-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or constituted a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 30 June 2003
or at any time during the year.



Financial
Summary
DREE

£33 RESULTS
Year ended 30 June
BERAZHELER
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
8= C9R-E CBR-F 0 ZRREE -AAME -AANE SRR -ARRE -AREE -AABE ~RRSE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  RKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HK$'000
FER TEn TER TET TER TERL TEL TER TER TR Tin
BRg TURNOVER 1851848 163338 1510779 1457181 1393682 1276561 1157481 1025187 766,436 553,229 298,618
REGARRBEY PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION
AHREEERR Continuing operations
AREREE excluding other
operating items* 367,550 205313 296,272 436,035 303,533 292,972 202,533 261,203 207,865 181,600 143,059
ERSEREE: Other operating items* (122,387) (72,893) (5,573) (83,307) (91,532) (88,005) (3,980) (16,027) - - 5,714

240,163 132,420 290,699 352,728 212,001 204,967 288,553 25,178 207,866 181,600 148,773

AEEBLRER SHARE OF LOSS OF AN
ASSOCIATED COMPANY - - - - - - - - {4,607} - -

240,163 132,420 290,699 352,128 22,001 204,967 288,553 25176 203,259 181,600 148,773

BH (30 BE TAXATION (CHARGE)
CREDIT (1,429) {27 (584)  (3013)  (1.215) (140 (33) 1,207 (289)  (1283)  (9,104)
FHORBERS PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY
FEON INTERESTS* B873 139893 280015 3975 210785 204827 288180 246383 200390 180317 139,669
DRBBRE* MINGRITY INTERESTS* (47,487) 1087 (0712) (45860} (25234)  (4gaT)  (17,361) - - - -
¥ NETPROFITFORTHEYEAR® 191,247 133040 249403 303855 185552 180,200 270819 246383 200390 180317 139,669
1 DIVIDENDS 604 B3N 16,286 25,389 13868 8338 325 54590 4243 64,430 53,556
BERADO ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
At 30 June
RARZ+E
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Z®%=f CP9-E C¥F-F 0 ZEREE -AAE -AAMNE MR CAARE -AMEE -hABE -AnEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK'000  HK$'000  HKY000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'00D

Fi7 T FhL T TR TR THR TR R TER TEL
RES TOTAL ASSETS 4,280,035 3941869 3444962 3420308 2707011 2285355 2075242 1870557 1494284  1.205174 898,107
ARAERIMES TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
g MINORITY INTERESTS* 1,069,211 999,805 863,070 1,080,081 707,079 667,181 627,929 521,740 487,628 366,320 57,918
Bgag SHAREHOLDERS'FUNDS® 3210764 2342064 258189 230227 19939 1618174 1447313 1348817 1006656  83B3% 840,189
* CER-_FRIFER-FIRHEHFTE *  Comparative figures for 2002 and 2001 have been restated following the
RERAF T RGBT EHERLENET adoption of new and revised Statement of Standard Accounting Practice.
AE D
# —NMAZFE_BE-EFEIZLBE # Comparative figures for 1993-2001 have been restated in accordance with
FERBEEHRBZ 2HRBIBEE the new and revised Statement of Standard Accounting Practice adopted
ETIISERIT FIAED BB by the Group to achieve a consistent presentation.
EHHH-
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—®¥c=E -TT-F —ZT-£ CZTETFFE -AAAE
FER FEL TER THL TER
ERNBERAZTBEER)
~&%% 1,851,848 1,633,388 1,510,779 1,457,181 1,393,682
—REAFE HE FER
B# 7 R7 (EBITDA) 669,887 563,171" 632,993" 596,344 492,029
— % 191,247 133,040! 249,403" 303,855 185,552
k& 27,604 23,379 16,286 25,389 13,868
BMBWR (RAR=+E)
-BARRESE 489,945 490,374 454,426 541,136 595,395
-AEHE 4,280,035 3,941,869 3,444,962 3,420,308 2,707,071
-BRES 3,210,764 2,942,064'  2,581,892' 2,340,227 1,999,992
EBRLSE(MARETR)
~RBRE/THER 2.83 2.152 2.261 1.30 2.12
-BE/BRES 1.33 1.34? 1.33? 1.46 1.35
-$55/EE 0.43 0.41 0.44 0.43 0.51
-EHBEL R 0.17 0.182 0.17 0.19 0.22

ES

1. FFEE SREBEHEREN £34% SEARETRRAHEMETRIRR EEMELEES
B ARSESIRTEITAARCTSESR4BEI 2 R FR-_Z2 _FAiRBE -FHNHRESEHE
ANAZTEZ-RR-ERR-BBR_SERFAFE PR FERBHEZRF (EBITDA) HETH-B
Ei B ALERRESZFEE T - FRIBF S ZHAENBERES N THIE 18786 T

BITR3ITIESHRIBE -

2. HEHFERL-AZENERMEFHE-

FHiR+-ERSAT
(FHT)
659,887
638,556 N
596308 6?1011
N ‘
6 3
5?5'26 492,028 s s
- D
415,326 415744
£ N
317,602 |
po
\ 303,855
238,160 | L 270809
N i
176,003 246583 \
e D-‘/'z:nfaf g 170,570_'91247
180,317 ‘ | 180,208 185,552 \ —;/
138,669 ! K 1 133,000®
, ; ; ‘
i |
1 i |
I oS R s /

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

[ REAFE B ABR
K7 ZFY(EBITDA)

— g LEF|

REALETNMZBE

REAHEL
BE - FER
B2 BH
(EBITDA}
a2

2002F  2001%
FET FET

629,011 638,566
170,570 252,579
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Hamilton HM 11
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Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited

65 Front Street

Hamilton

Bermuda
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ERBIT
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REERES

111 Wall Street, 5th Floor
New York, NY 10043
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